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OCD HEARI NG

Moder at ed by Hearing Exam ner, Gregory Chakali an

Thur sday, January 9, 2025
9: 00 a.m MDT

Meeting held via Zoom platform
Meeti ng adjourned at 2:50 p.m MDT

REPORTED BY: KRI STI NE KACZOR, RPR
NM CCR #545

JOB NO: 6972843
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HEARI NG EXAM NER: Good morning it is
January 9, 2024. W nane is Gregory Chakalian. |'m

t he hearing exam ner and today we have Dean MCl ure

as our -- please let ne know if you need soneone to
speak | ouder. Okay. We will start with |ine nunber
one on our docket. This docket was published

yesterday. This is case nunber 24845. It is joined
with 24846, 24847, and 24848. May | have entries of
appear ance, pl ease.

MS. VANCE: Good norning. Paula Vance with
the Santa Fe office of Holland & Hart on behal f of
Mewbourne QO | .

MS. BENNETT: Good norning Dina Bennett for
Franklin Mountain Energy 3.

MS. BRADFUTE: Good norning, M. Hearing
Exam ner. This is Jennifer Bradfute on behalf of --
Energy, Inc.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Good norning. Let's
start with you Ms. Bennett, did you object in
wi t hdrawn obj ection?

MS. BENNETT: Yes.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: At this point do you
have any objections to any of the exhibits.

MS. BENNETT: No.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Okay. Great. And do
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you have any other role that you want to play in
t oday' s heari ng.

MS. BENNETT: No, just nonitoring.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Ms. Bradfute, did you
enter an objection?

MS. BRADFUTE: No entry.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Great. Have you
revi ewed the exhibits?

MS. BRADFUTE: Yes, | have.

THE COURT: Do you have any objection to
t hent?

MS. BRADFUTE: No. No objection. COG
Operating seeks review if necessary.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Thank you. Ms. Vance?

MS. VANCE: Thank you, M. Hearing
exam ner. So in these consolidated cases Mewbourne
seeks to prove in the bone spring formation the pool
is the feather stone bone spring east pool and the
24270 and this is all underlying acreage and
township 20 south range 36 east and that's Lee
County, New Mexico, and this is all concerning
acreage in section seven. And 18 in -- and I'1]|
just go through the cases very quickly on the
spaci ng units.

So case nunber 24845 is the west half, west
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hal f acreage that | just described seeks to

dedi cated this to the Goat Rope 18. Then case
nunmber 24846 is the east half of the west half and
that's going to be the Goat Rope to that spacing

uni t. And then we have the case number 24847, which
Is the west half of the east half and that would be
Goat Rope 525H. And then case nunber 24848, which
I's the east half of the east half and that will be

t he Goat Rope 527H, and those are all state commells
i n these cases.

We have included a copy of the application
provided a copy the compul sory self-affirm
statenments of |andman Hudson Burnson and geol ogi st
Charl es, both of whom have previously testified
before the division and their credentials have been
accepted as a matter of record in both M. Burnson
and M. Crosby with us today if the technical
exam ner has any questions. M. Burnson's statenent
is Exhibit A and includes all the standard exhibits.
And then M. Crosby's statenent is Exhibit B and
I ncl udes all of the standard geol ogy exhibits.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: | have a question about
t he exhi bit packet. | have one from Decenber and
one froma couple of days ago. Which is the good

one?

Page 4

Veritext Lega Solutions
Caendar-nm@veritext.com 505-243-5691 WWWw.veritext.com



© 00 N oo o b~ W N P

N R N N R R N N =
o A W N P O © 0O N O 0o &~ W N +—» O

MS. VANCE: \Which case nunber?

THE COURT: Let's start with 24848.

MS. VANCE: It should be the |atest one. |
believe M. MClure may have reached out to nme. |
know | got a couple of requests fromhimto update
sonme items on a nunber of different hearing packets,
so I'"massumng it's probably the latest filed
application -- or I'msorry hearing packet.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: So they both have the
same number of pages so that doesn't differentiate
them Neither one say anmended hearing packet, so
should | just assume that the one fromthe

January 2nd is the good one and we can renove the

Decenber 1.
MS. VANCE: | believe so. [If you give ne
one nmonment | can tell you exactly what was updated.

Let me just check nmy email here.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: And Freya, are you able
to renove as we go through?

MS. TSCHANTZ: Yes, | can.

MS. VANCE: Actually, this is one where it
was all the hearing packets. And | believe there
was a map that was overlaying the structure cross
section and we just went in, took that out so you

can see the entire cross section without any overl ay
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there. So it's all with those.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: So, Freya in all four
cases would you renove the Decenmber exhibit pact and
just keep the January Decenber packet.

MS. TSCHANTZ:  Yes.

THE COURT: Thank you. Okay. Pl ease
proceed.

MS. VANCE: In these cases, M. Crosby did
not observe any faulting or other geographical --
immaterial to these wells. And then lastly we have
all of the required notice a conpul sory self-affirm
statement fromnyself with a sanple of the letter
notice that was tinely mailed back in Septenber, and
then the notice of publication affidavit. Again,

t hat was published in Septenber so unless there are
any other questions | would ask that the exhibits
and sub-exhibits be admtted into the record and

t hat these cases be taken under advi senment.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Okay. |In these four
cases are there any objections to the January
exhi bit packet? Not hearing any. Exhibits wll be
allowed in all four cases are admtted into evidence
and | turn to M. MClure for questions.

MR. MCCLURE: M. Hearing exam ner, | have

no questions for any of these four cases.
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THE COURT: Thank you. Then we will take
t hese four cases and under advisenment and we are off
the record in these cases. Thank you, Ms. Vance.

Okay. |I'mnow starting with 24849. It is
nunber five on our list entries of appearance.

MS. BENNETT: Good norning Dina Bennett on
behal f of Avant Operating.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Were there any ot her
parties that you know of, Ms. Bennett?

MS. VANCE: Yes. | apologize. Paula Vance
with the Santa Fe office of Holland & Hart on behal f
Mat ador Producti on.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Have you entered an
obj ection?

MS. VANCE: | believe so, yes, and we have
wi t hdrawn t hat .

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Are you taking this case
over for M. Feldnore?

MS. VANCE: | am

HEARI NG EXAM NER: So do you know whet her
t hey were w t hdrawn?

MS. BENNETT: They wi t hdrew.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Have any other parties
t hat you know of entered an appearance?

MS. BENNETT: Thank you. In this case,
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Avant Operating seeks approval of a nonstandard unit
and al so an order pooling uncomm tted interest
owners and the Wells in this case will be call ed.
The saphire wells and include the usual exhibits.
Exhibit Ais the application or the conpul sory
pooling checklist XR. Exhibit Al is the
application. Exhibit A2 is the -- self who's
previously testified before the division.

Exhi bit B Josh Pain, exhibit Cis ny notice
i nformati on, and Exhibit Dis the self-affirmed
statement of Al exey Zaitsev. He has not previously
testified before the division, but we included a
copy of his resune. And his resunme reflects that he
has experience and education in Petrillium

HEARI NG EXAM NER: So before we continue
wi th your presentation, | see several exhibit
packets. Can we renove the one from Septenber?

MS. BENNETT: Yes.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Ckay. So Freya, would
you pl ease renove the Septenber 26 exhibit packet,
whi ch woul d | eave the January 2nd as the only one.
And then what page would the CV be on.

MS. BENNETT: The CV is Exhibit D2, which
I's Page 178 of the PDF.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Okay. And do we have --
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how do you say his name?

MS. BENNETT: Al exey Zaitsev. And, yes, he
shoul d be on.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Good nmorning. Would you
turn your camera on, sir?

MR. ZAI TSEV: Good norni ng.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Good nmorning. There you
are. Would you raise your right hand, please?

ALEXEY ZAl TSEV,

havi ng been first duly sworn to state the whol e
truth, testified as foll ows:

MR. ZAl TSEV: Yes, | do.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Great. Wuld you state
and spell your nane for the record?

MR. ZAI TSEV: Al exey Zaitsev, A-L-E-X-E-Y
Z-A-1-T-S-E-V.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Okay. And what field of
expertise do you seek to be qualified before this
di vi si on?

MR. ZAI TSEV: Reservoir engineering.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Okay. And what
education do you have that goes toward that?

A. | received a Bachel or of Science from Texas

Tech University back in 2016 and petrol eum

engi neeri ng.
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Q In what?

A. I n petroleum engi neering, so part of the
petroleumis reservoir engi neering course, such as
i nformati on eval uati on and property and reservoir
engi neering and so on.

Q So that was in 2016. And what experience
do you have since then to qualify you?

A. |I've worked as both a petrol eum engi neer
and the reservoir engineer since then. | worked for
two years as a petroleum A & D Corporation as well
as for six years as a reservoir engineer fromboth A
& D Corporation and Avant Operting.

Q COkay. What's your title now?

A. I'mtitled currently as senior reservoir
engi neer.

Q Okay. And you were saying A & D
engi neering? |Is that what you were saying?

A. | did work for one year for Troost, which
is an investment bank as an A & D engi neer where |
oversaw acqui sitions of various conpanies. Yes,
sir.

Q Okay. Okay. You are deened qualified as
an expert in petroleumreservoir engineering before
this division from here on out, so thank you very

much. Keep your camera on. We may have sonme
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guestions for you. But Ms. Bennett, please proceed.

MS. BENNETT: Thank you, very much. And
so, just to recap in this case Avant is seeking
approval, which is why we've include additiona
exhi bits prepared by M. Zaitsev to support
nonstandard unit portion of the application.

And al so one other quick note is that in
conversations with M. MClure and also with Avant,
it came to |ight that Avant had understood that one
party had been acquired by another party, but, in
fact, that hadn't occurred. And that party is VDR
and they're shown on the pooled party list as of
t oday, but our intent is to renmove them and resubmt
an anended exhi bit packet because they will not be
pool ed agreenment with them We would need to cone
back and pool them at a | ater date?

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Do you have a page
nunber of the exhibit that you're going to amend?

MS. BENNETT: Yes. It is page nunber 62 of
181.

THE COURT: MVDR you sai d?

MS. BENNETT: Yes.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: So you are not seeking
to pool out?

MS. BENNETT: Partly. That's correct.
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HEARI NG EXAM NER: Because you are.

MS. BENNETT: The Avant is in discussions
with MVDR at this tine.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: For what purpose?

MS. BENNETT: Wth the goal of entering a
JOA.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: So you don't -- if you
don't put one in place you'll have to come back and
seek to pool them but if you do, you don't have to,
SO you're going to renpve themfromthe interest to
be pool ed?

MS. BENNETT: Yes.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Ckay. | understand.
Ckay. So continue.

MS. BENNETT: Wth that, | would ask that
the exhibits be admtted into the record in case
24848, and |'m happy to answer any questions that
t he division may have.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Per f ect. Ms. Vance, any
objections to the exhibits?

MS. VANCE: No, M. Hearing Exam ner.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Your exhibits in this
case, Ms. Bennett, are all received into evidence
for your January 2nd, 2025 exhibit packet. [|I'II

turn to M. MClure for any questions for any of the
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Wi t nesses.

MR. MCCLURE: Thank you, M. Hearing
exam ner. | have a quick clarifying question for
Ms. Bennett and then a question for the | and man.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Okay. Do you have the
| and man with us, Ms. Bennett? What's that person's
name?

MS. BENNETT: Tiffany Sarantinos.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Wbul d you pl ease turn
your canmera on?

(Attenpting to swear in Ms. Sarantinos.)

HEARI NG EXAM NER: | can't hear you. Can
you unmute yourself and say it again? Now | don't
see you muted, but I still can't hear you. | wonder
I f your m crophone is on. It is on. WeIlIl, | can't
hear you. Maybe you can go and join M. Zaitsev in
his office. While you' re working on your
m crophone, let's deal with Ms. Bennett and the
gquestion from M. MClure.

MR. McCLURE: Ms. Bennett, just to confirm
it looks Iike there was a cover letter that was
submtted January 3rd. It tal ks about the revised
exhi bit packet. This is referencing the January 2nd
exhi bit packet, correct?

MS. BENNETT: That's correct when | filed
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t he January 2nd exhi bit packet, | had included that
cover |ever, but sonehow it got lost in the ether,
so when you emailed nme on January 3rd | realized
that that had not nmade it into the case file. So |
filed it on January 3rd, but it does relate back to
the January 2nd filing. And | will prepare a
revised cover letter and submt that when | submt
the revised exhibits show ng the pool ed parties.

MR. McCLURE: Thank you. | suspect this is
what went on. | just want to make sure what we're
| ooki ng at.

MS. BENNET: Thanks for clarifying.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: There we go. You keep
getting muted for some reason, and we can't hear
you. Do you want to dial in or sonething |like that.

MS. SARANTI NOS: That's what | did.

THE COURT: Great. So you heard what |
asked you when you raised your -- raise your right
hand. What is your answer?

TI FFANY SARANTI NOS,
havi ng been first duly sworn to state the whole
truth, testified as follows:

MS. SARANTI NOS: | do.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: You do. You can put
your hand down. M. MClure.
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MR. McCLURE: Thank you, M. Hearing
Exam ner. Ms. Serantino, if |I can draw your
attention to Page 62 of 181. This is your sunmary
of enter and working interest owners table.

A.  Uh- huh.

Q MWWDR Resources, LLC, do they own a worKking
i nterest in the opposed area?

A.  They do, yes.

Q Was notice of this application provided to
t hen?

A. They received their Well proposals. And so
this is the party that we're actually renoving from
the the docket today. |'mnot sure if you caught
t hat at the begi nning, but we're renmoving MVDR from
bei ng a pool ed party.

Q So is it accurate to say that they were not
provi ded notice of this application?

A. Yes. | think through the virtue of just
title and just m sinterpretation. W've been in
cl ose cont act. In fact, they have JOA. And t here's
an offer for an acquisition, but just to be safe
we're going to say that correct notice was not
received and that we're renoving them

Q Okay. So just to confirm then, they were

not provided notice of this application?
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A. Correct.
Q Ckay. Thank you.

MR. McCLURE: M. Hearing Exam ner, | have
no further questions, but this is the case that |
was curi ous about whether notice was going to need
to be provided to all interest owners regardl ess of
whet her they're being pool ed.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Thank you, M. MCl ure.
Are there any other questions for anyone, or are we
done with this case?

MS. BENNETT: M. Hearing Exam ner, may |
provi der one bit of clarifying information?

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Sure. Let nme just get
M. MClure to answer the question. M. MCl ure,
are you finished with all your questions?

MR. McCLURE: | apol ogize, M. Hearing
Exam ner, | didn't catch what you were asking. |
am That is all the questions | have for this case.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Okay. Ms. Bennett?

MS. BENNETT: Thank you. So, when we
realized -- when Avant and nyself realized that MDR
did not have notice of the hearing, we did -- Avant
reached out to MVDR and has been engaged in
di scussions with them since that time and is working

towards a voluntary agreenment. And so, | think that
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they did have notice of the hearing not within the
20 days, but we definitely told them of today's
heari ng date.

But | would also just point out that the
OCD rules, and | failed to bring nmy rule book with
me today of all days require notice to parties being
pool ed, not to all interest owners under 19 -- |
think it's 19.15.412. Don't quote ne on that. So |
don't think that the defect in notice for MVDR would
| npede the division fromissuing an order in this
case. And, in fact, the division's practice has
been to not require notice if you're not pooling
parties.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: But you're -- them
anyway by removing them from the pool party list?

MS. BENNETT: Exactly.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: So, why are you telling
me about that?

MS. BENNETT: In response to M. MClure's
comment that he was curious whether notice was
appropriate given that one working interest owner
was not notified.

THE COURT: M. MClure, does that raise
any further question for you or are you satisfied?

MR. McCLURE: M. Hearing Exam ner, | guess
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| am still curious as to wherein rule it states that
an interest owner does not need to be pooled -- or

i f an interest owner does not need to be noticed if
t hey're not being pool ed.

MS. BENNETT: So it is 19.15.412. And it's
subsection A. And the rule says that the applicant
shall give notice to each owner of an interest the
applicant proposes to be pulled pooled. And so, if
an applicant is not proposing to pool a working
i nterest owner, they do not need to give notice to
t hat working interest owner.

And, in fact, there are a nunmber of
situations when we don't give notice to working
I nt erest owners when they' ve already entered into a
JOA, for exanple. There's no need to provide them
notice of a conmpul sory pooling hearing if they're
not going to be pooled. And so that's 19.15.412A,
1A.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Thank you, Ms. Bennett.
Ms. Vance, the other day at a hearing you said
sonmething that | think goes to that. Do you
remember what you were tal king about? You said
well, we're not seeking to pool that party.

MS. VANCE: That's right.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: | renenmber that. |
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wonder if that's what you were referring to.

MS. VANCE: Sounds pretty close to it.
Yes.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: M. Rankin, you sol ved
many riddles with that citation today. Thank you.
Can we take this case under advi sement once the
amended packet is received, M. MClure?

MR. McCLURE: M. Hearing Exam ner, | nmean,
l'mreading the rule currently, but if the applicant
Is confident that that's how that that what's in
rule, then | see no reason why we couldn't take it
under advi senment.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Ckay. Well, | heard a
citation from 1915412A. | don't hear any objections
to that interpretation. So for now, Ms. Bennett,
when wil|l you be submtting the anended heari ng
packet ?

MS. BENNETT: If | could have Monday
t hrough cl ose of business, that would be great.

THE COURT: Perfect. Monday, let's get the
date here. That is the 13th. So we have -- we'll
| eave the record open until close of business 13th

of January for an amended exhi bit packet with cover

letter. We will renmove everything already submtted
once we receive that, and then we will take this
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case under advisenent, so thank you for your
presentati on.

Moving on it |ooks like |I'm going to cal
t hese cases, but they have been objected to these
are Matador Production cases nunber six and seven on
hour docket is 24864 and 65. Entries of appearance,
pl ease.

MS. VANCE: Good norning, M. Hearing
Exam ner. Paula Vance with the Santa Fe Office of
Hol | and & Hart on behal f of Matador.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Thank you.

MS. BENNETT: |'m not sure if anyone is on
ri ght now.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: |' m not sure either, but
they're the objecting party and they represent XTO
as far as | know. Do we have anyone from XTO with
us today? These cases are on the docket, or is
t here an objection from Fasken? Ms. Vance, what do
you know?

MS. VANCE: Yes. | believe -- if you give
me one monment. That's correct. Fasken also did
file an entry of appearance and obj ecti on.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: So do very a nultiple
obj ections or just one objection?

MS. VANCE: Okay. So it |looks |like XTO did

Page 20

Veritext Lega Solutions
Caendar-nm@veritext.com 505-243-5691 WWWw.veritext.com



© 00 N oo o b~ W N P

N R N N R R N N =
o A W N P O © 0O N O 0o &~ W N +—» O

wi t hdraw their objection, so it should just be
Fasken at this point.

MS. SHAHEEN: My apologies. | did not
realize we woul d be discussing these cases this
nmor ni ng. Sharon Shaheen Santa Fe Office of Spencer
Fane on behal f of Fasken. And, yes, late on
Tuesday, | filed an entry of appearance and
objection to noving forward by affidavit in these
two cases on behalf of Fasken.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: \What is the objection?

MS. SHAHEEN: They received very l|ate
notice, and they intend to -- they hope to negotiate
a term assignnment, and they need sone time to get
t hat done.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Okay. So it sounds Iike
there's a good chance of resolving the objection?

MS. SHAHEEN: Yes, that's the hope.

THE COURT: Okay. Ms. Vance, do you know
why there was |l ate notice in this case?

MS. VANCE: | believe maybe what
Ms. Shaheen is saying is because the notice would be
tinmely, but maybe it got to their office |ater
because of the holidays, |'m not sure, but | believe
that the notice is tinmely, but receipt of it may

have been, you know, late to their office because of
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t he hol i days.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: So we'll nove the --

MS. SHAHEEN: Actually, | believe the
notice was sent to the incorrect address. An old
of fice.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Thank you, Ms. Shaheen.
So Ms. Vance, we're going to nove these two cases to
t he January 23rd docket for a status conference.

MS. VANCE: That works for us.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Okay. And you don't
have to do that. W do that automatically now that
we have a new system if we get an objection to a
case that's being heard by affidavit, we will nove
It ourselves to the next status conference docket.
You don't have to pay for that. Anything further,
Ms. Vance?

MS. VANCE: No.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Ms. Shaheen?

MS. SHAHEEN: Not from Fasken.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Thank you. We're off
the record.

Movi ng on to case nunmber eight. Catanount
Energy. This is case 24987. Entries of appearance,
pl ease.

MS. VANCE: Good norning, M. Hearing
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Exam ner. Paula Vance with the Santa Fe office of
Hol  and & Hart on behalf of the applicant, Catanount
Energy Partners.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: And, can you verify that
there's no other parties entered?

MS. VANCE: That's correct. There are no
ot her parties.

THE COURT: Pl ease proceed.

MS. VANCE: Thank you. So in case nunber
24987, Catampunt seeks to create a 1440-acre nore or
| ess nonstandard horizontal Well spacing unit. And
that's going to be in the mancos formati on. The
pool is the basin mancos pool. And the pool code is
97232. And that's underlying the north half and the
north half of the south half of sections 13, 14, and
15 township 32 north range six west. And that's in
San Juan in Rio Arriba's County's New Mexi co.

And Cat anount seeks to pull the uncommtted
m neral interest owners and approval of the
nonst andard horizontal spacing unit. And Catanount
seeks to dedicated this unit to the NLS32 tack six,
tack 153H, 4H and 5H. So this this case we have
i ncl uded a copy of the application. W have
provi ded the compul sory pulling checklist as well as

the self-affirmed statement of | and man, Deni se
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Greer and geol ogi st Rustle, goes by Rusty Kelly.

And both have actually testified before
the division. | did include M. Rustle's resune,
just a slight oversight, he al so appears before the
oil comm ssion in Colorado, and they require a
resume with every packet and subm ssion. So he has,
actually, testified before, just a little m X
bet ween the states there.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: So are you saying then
t hat both of your experts -- so you have two
experts?

MS. VANCE: That's right. Land nman and a
geol ogi st and both have previously testified before
the division and their credentials have been
accepted as a matter of record.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: I n their current area of
expertise.

MS. VANCE: That's correct.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: But you don't have a

reservoir engineer for today?

MS. VANCE: No, | do not. It's just that
we included a copy of M. Kelly's resune, and | just
didn't want to -- | nmean, if you want to ask him

guestions, or if you need nme to update the hearing

packet to renmove his resune, |'m happy to do that,
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t 0o.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Thank you.

MS. VANCE: Ms. Greer's statenent is
Exhi bit A and includes all of the standard exhibits
along with a offset diagram showi ng the acreage of
the effected parties for the NSP along with a |ist
of the parties that were notified of the NSP
request. And that would be Exhibit A6 for
reference.

And then M. Kelly's statenent is Exhibit B
along with all the standard geol ogy exhibits. And
M. Rustle did not observe any faulting pinch-outs
or geologic inpedinents to the horizontal drilling
of these wells. And then, lastly, we have the
notice, which is nyself affirmed statenment al ong
with a sanple notice letter that was tinely sent out
on Novenber 15th, 2024.

And then, the notice of affidavit of
publication. And we have two because we have two
counties i1 nvol ved. And so, both of those were
timely, both published in Novenmber. And unless
there are any questions | would ask that the
exhi bits and sub-exhibits be admtted into the
record, and that this case be taken under advi senment

at this tinme.
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HEARI NG EXAM NER: Are there any objections
to the exhibits? Not hearing any, your exhibits are
admtted into evidence. Let's go to M. MClure to
see if he has any questions for your w tnesses.

MR. McCLURE: M . Hearing Exam ner, | do
have a question for the |and man.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Can we get the | and nan
on the screen.

MS. VANCE: Yes. | believe she is up and
avai l able right there.

THE COURT: Great. Good norning,

Ms. Greer. Wuld you raise your right hand, please.
DENI SE GREER,

havi ng been first duly sworn to state the whol e

truth, testified as foll ows:

MS. GREER: | do.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Wbul d you state and
spell your nane for the record.

MS. GREER: Deni se Greer, D-E-N-1-S-E
G R E-E-R

HEARI NG EXAM NER:  Thank you. M. MClure.

Q Thank you. WMs. Greer, sitting here | ooking
at the application packet.

MR. McCLURE: Ms. Vance, is the one is

upl oaded, is that the nost recent exhibit packet?
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Because | thought we had an exhibit packet that had
the list of offset operators included in it.

MS. VANCE: Yes. | sent one yesterday so
' m not sure if maybe it may not have gotten
upl oaded yet, but | did provide an updated version
to both yourself and Freya.

MR. McCLURE: Thank you. | renmenber seeing
the email, and |I'mjust |ooking at the one we have.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: So, M. McClure, hold on
a second. Freya, do we have sonmething in the queue?

MS. TSCHANTZ: Let ne check.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Ms. Vance, when did you
say you sent it?

MS. VANCE: | believe it was yesterday.

Let nme check ny email.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: And if we need ot her
break with we can al ways take a break, but | think
Freya can release it fromthe queue read into the
case.

MS. TSCHANTZ: There are no pending
exhibits right now.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Do you want to send it
again, Ms. Vance?

MS. VANCE: Yes. It looks like it was sent

yesterday at 1:21 p.m, so.
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HEARI NG EXAM NER: Well, it's not in the
| mgi ng and Freya doesn't have it, so why don't you
send it again to Freya and to Dean. And in the
meantinme let's take a break for a nmonent and let ne
-- M. Rankin, can you approach the -- and turn on
the m crophone here. | want to ask you a question
about sonmething you said earlier.

MR. RANKIN: Good norning, M. Chandler.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Good nor ni ng,
M. Rankin. And this is basically the rule that you
read earlier. \Where did you get the version of the
rule that you read earlier?

MR. RANKIN: The one that | gave Ms. --

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Yes.

MR. RANKIN: Oh, | got it fromthe NVAC
code website.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Do you nmean the saved

archives?

MR. RANKIN: I'Il wupload the website and
"Il tell you in a mnute. 1It's the -- SCRA.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Right. | know that's
the official -- there we go. Their website was

having difficulty because it seenms to nme that
M. MClure has a different version, and | want to

| ook at the version you -- so give ne a mnute
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because I'mon the state archives now. Okay. And
|'mgoing to go to 12.

So M. Rankin, |I see 19154A1A, which |
think is what you were quoting before. It says,
conmpul sory pooling and statutory utilization. It
says, "the applicant shall give notice to each owner
of an interest in the mneral estate of any portion
of the |l abs the applicant proposes to be pooled."
And I'lIl stop there. The way you read it before,
the interpretation seemed a bit nmore narrow. \What
-- the way | read this, any interest in the area
seens to be fair game for notice. You seemto read
It nore narrow ng.

MR. RANKIN: | think the question -- if you
keep reading the whole entry --

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Yes.

MR. RANKIN: It goes on to say, and whose

i nterest has not been voluntarily commtted to the

ar ea.
HEARI NG EXAM NER: Ckay.
MR. RANKIN: | made the -- Ms. Bennett that
to address the question, but I'll just say that |

think the issue is either an owner of a m neral
i nterest has to be pooled, it can be done

voluntarily or by an order prior to production.
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HEARI NG EXAM NER: | don't think there's
any argument. | don't think anyone is arguing that,
but what |'m seeking clarification by discussing
this issue further is the idea was that you had to
have a certain type of interest in the pool, but
this sentence doesn't |look |like that. And | just
t hought I'd bring that up because | know that the
di vision doesn't read the rule that way.

MR. RANKIN: | may defer to Ms. Bennett to
address these question.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Okay. Ms. Bennett?

MS. BENNETT: Thank you. Yes. So if you
-- and, again, | was saying this on the fly, but if

you | ook down at 19.15.4.12A -- B. Sorry B. 1B

HEARI NG EXAM NER: ' m not there. ' m on
A

MS. BENNETT: Well, so A1B(3) sub-three
little romonet three. |t says that the applicant

shoul d give the nanes and addresses of the interest
owners to be pooled and the percentage of their

I nterests. So, the practice has been that -- and ny
under st andi ng has been happy to hear from ot her

fol ks about their understanding that the notice

|l etters are sent to the parties that the applicant

I's seeking to pool. Conmpul sory pool, not to al
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wor ki ng i nterest owners.

If a working interest owner, for exanple,
has reached a voluntary agreenent, then they do not
fall under category -- well, first, they would be
excl uded by 1915412A1A, which says that you don't
give notice to an interest owner whose interest has
been voluntarily commtted. So if an interest has
been voluntarily commtted, then there's no
requi rement of notice.

That's what | -- how | read ALA. And, then
AlB Romanet three says that you provide the
I nformati on about the parties you're seeking to
pool, which are uncomm tted interest owners. And so
t he practice has been that we provide notice to the
parties that were seeking -- that the applicant is
seeking to pool, not all parties. For example, if a
party has voluntarily commtted their interest to
the unit then | don't send them a notice letter
because they're not being pooled they don't have an
I nterest in the adjudication of the hearing.

They're not being affected by the outcone
of the hearing because they've entered into a
voluntary agreenment with the operator. So, it's
been the practice to not provide notice to fol ks who

voluntarily agreed to join a unit, a spacing unit if
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t hey' ve executed a JOA, for exanple, there's no need
to provide them notice of the hearing. And the
practice has also been that if a party has -- if
there's been sone defect in notice, that we have
routinely dropped that party from-- and by "we" |
mean probably everyone sitting at this dias has
dropped that party fromthe pooling case and has

wor ked -- the applicant then has worked into a
voluntary agreenment with that party.

And if they're unable to reach a voluntary
agreenment with that party then we come back, give
them notice, and they can appear at a hearing if
t hey choose not to be pool ed.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Okay. | don't think
there's any -- | don't think there's any debate
about that part of what you were saying. | think
t he question arose in the interpretation that was
read out earlier by M. Rankin and yourself and
cited to this rule. | think it was understood that
you were trying to say that only certain types of
i nterest in the mneral estate need to be noticed
and here it says an interest.

MS. BENNETT: Right. | wasn't trying to
make a distinction between any specific type of

interest. Rather, | was making a distinction
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bet ween i nterest being pooled and interest not being
pool ed.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Because there's a
vol untary agreenent.

MS. BENNETT: Yes.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Right. And it says that
right here in the rules, so | don't think that's a
guestion an issue. M. MClure, before we go to
your questions for the land man, did that discussion
help at all, or does that still |eave some question
open in your m nd?

MR. McCLURE: M. Hearing Exam ner. |
mean, | see, | guess, the logic of where their
argunment is. | think the question that the division
may want to discuss is whether the voluntary
agreenent needs to, actually, be in place for that
original 1A exenption to occur, because as of right
now t hey don't have a voluntary agreenent. They
just believe they will get one. So does that, then,
mean they do not need to provide notice? |'m not
sure. | don't have the interpretation for that.
l'"mjust reading the rule, | guess, and that's the
gquestion in my m nd.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Thank you.

MS. BENNETT: So by renmoving themfromthe
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case, we are not no seeking to pool them And they

will, if the time comes when Avant does need to pool
themthey will be provided notice. So they are not
bei ng i npacted by the outcone of this hearing. It's

not adjudicating their interest one way or the
ot her.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: The confusion was they
were on the |ist.

MS. BENNETT: They were.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Now you're renoving them
fromthe list, so | can see how that cures that
problem And com ng back in the future m ght cure
anot her problem that you may have. But | think
that's what caused the whole question in the first
pl ace.

MS. BENNETT: | understand that.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: But | think we al
di scussed this, but it's good because | hasn't had
this discussion in this depth before. So
M. MClure, what Ms. Bennett is saying is had they
never been on that list in the first place, you

know, it m ght have not have raised that flag for

you.
MR. McCLURE: Well, | nean, that is
accurate. |If | hadn't realized that the working
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I nterest existed, then, yeah, | wouldn't have -- if

| had not reviewed it somewhat the working interest

was there, | wouldn't are that question in my m nd.
The overall question, | think, is still one that,
per haps, need some further discussion, but | would

t hi nk that discussion can happen internally, though,
rat her than hashed out right now.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Okay. | think that's
enough on this subject. Thank you. W have the
| and man sworn in and ready for your question.

MR. McCLURE: Yes, Ms. Greer, are you
| ooki ng at the nobst recent exhibit packet? | think
" m | ooking at the one that Ms. Vance just email ed
me.

MS. VANCE: That's correct. | emailed one
to you and I also sent one to you, M. --

MS. GREER: | think I'm |l ooking at the nost
recent one.

MS. VANCE: |1'mgoing to forward it to
Ms. Greer real quick.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Let's take a five-m nute
break, that way we can get the w tness oriented and
we can just move smoothly fromthere on end, so
we're off the record. Thank you.

(Recess was taken from9:45 a.m until 9:52
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a.m)

HEARI NG EXAM NER: We are back on the
record. Ms. Greer, do you have the exhibits in
front of you?

MS. GREER: | do.

THE COURT: Okay. Very good. M. MClure.

MR. McCLURE: Thank you, M. Hearing

Exam ner. M. Geer, if | could direct your
attention to Page 40 of 67. It should be a map of
the -- of, like, the offset of notice a year ago for
NSB.

MS. GREER: Yes.

Q On this map it appears that the tract
directly north and directly south of the proposed
NSP were noticed; is that correct?

A. That's correct.

Q Now, the lands directly to the west and
directly to the east, were they not noticed and if
not, why?

A. They weren't because | was advi sed by
counsel they weren't considered as a non-spacing
unit which -- | think.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Hold on, Ms. Vance. For
the record let's get a clear answer and we'll cone

to you in just a nonment.
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So, Ms. Greer, you said they were not

noti ced east and west or just east or just west or

bot h?

MS. GREER: East and west, | believe. I
mean - -

HEARI NG EXAM NER: We're trying to make a
clear record, Ms. Greer. So you are saying -- would

you answer the question, again? Wre they noticed?

MS. GREER: They were not noticed.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: East and west?

MS. GREER: East and west.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Okay. And you asked a
second part of your question was why, M. MClure?
MR. MCCLURE: Yes that's correct,

M. Examner. | was sort of asking two questions
t oget her.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: That's okay. We've
separated them now. M. Greer, why were they not
noti ced?

MS. GREER: M. -- said we just had to
notify the ones to the north and to the south
because that's where there was -- what the --
spaci ng.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Okay. M. MClure, do

you have any ot her questions for this witness before
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we go to Ms. Vance?

MR. MCCLURE: Well, | -- yes, | guess | do.

Q M. Geer, can you describe for me what the
| ands to the west and the east, are those a part of
a unit or are they -- or are they unl eashed m neral
I nterest maybe?

A. No. They're not unleashed mnerals. | can
tell you to the west, part of that section is in a
unit and it's owned by Hi Il Corp. And to the
east -- I'mgoing to correct nmyself here and sort of
retract what | said. They would have been notified
because of the same owners who owned in the unit
anyhow.

I n our proposed spacing unit, so all the
owners to the east did get notice of this because
they're being force pooled into the unit, and they
were given a chance to participate in the wells.

Q Okay. So were the owners to the --

A The east was notifi ed.

Q  Go ahead.

A They were notified just because they're
being force pooled into -- or seeking to force pool
theminto the unit, into the nonstandard unit.

Q On Page 41 of 67, there's a list of offset

affected persons; is that correct?
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A. Page --

Q It immediately follows the map that we're
| ooki ng at.
A. Yes.

Q Does this list include to the affected
persons to the east, then?

A. It does.

Q Okay. Wiich affected persons is there to
t hose east tracts?

A.  That would be Fred Turner, LLC, G enn
Turner, LLC, John Turner, LLC, Mary Francis Turner
Trust and Royalty Partners.

Q Thank you. And to the west, you said Hill
Corp. is the affected person; is that correct?

A. That's correct.

Q  And was Heel Corp. provided notice of this

application?

A. | can't answer that. They were on the
original notice list that | provided to Holland &
Hart. They just -- I"mnot -- they're not on ny
exhibit. But they were on the original list, so
t hey could have been notified of it. [|I'm/looking at
a spreadsheet that I, originally, sent to Holland &

Hart to M ke --
HEARI NG EXAM NER: So, Ms. Greer, is the
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answer you don't know?

MS. GREER: That would be correct. | can't
say what actually was sent out to Holland & Hart's
of fice.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Ckay. M. MClure, the
answer is she doesn't know about the west with Hill
Cor p.

MR. MCCLURE: Thank you, M. Hearing

Exam ner. | believe -- yeah, | have no further
guestions for this witness. 1'd just be interested
to hear what Ms. Vance, | guess, thoughts are on the
matt er.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Perfect. M. Greer,
t hank you. Ms. Vance?

MS. VANCE: Yes. | can definitely explain
this and why Ms. Greer was advised by M. -- that we
only had to provide notice really to the south here
in the south half of the south half of 13, 14, and
15. So | have up here a map of the area and you'll
see, sothis is --

HEARI NG EXAM NER: VWhich exhibit is this?

MS. VANCE: This is A6.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Is this the new A6?

MS. VANCE: The new A6. Correct. So

you'll see that this is -- you've got -- sorry, ny
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cursor is kind of noving all around here. This is a
gas pool that we're in so the building blocks is
320 acres. And so, this isn't an enlarged spacing
unit. We are not including acreage because you'll
see the building blocks are 320. And then down here
we're not including this 80 acres. So you've got
stacked 320, 320, and we're just excluding acreage.
And the requirenent under the rules, which I'll go
to. Gve nme a second here.

For affected parties, and | am | ooking at
19151615 and it would be -- let nme just go up here.
B5 and B, the notice requirenent. So, where we are
excl udi ng acreage fromthe horizontal spacing unit
to create an NSP, we just provide notice to the
tracts that are not included in the spacing unit,
which is what we did. So where as typically a |ot
of times during these hearings you see where we have
an NSP, and it's an enlarged spacing unit and you
provide notice to all of those surrounding tracts
here, we are just not including certain acreage.
And so we just provide notice to the tracts that are
not included, which is exactly what we did.

MR. MCCLURE: Ms. Vance, |ooking at the 4H
Well, would it be accurate to say that the intent is

to use that as a proxy Well and bring in the south
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hal f of those sections?

MS. VANCE: | believe so. And | -- if you
give me one second here. | don't recall, but |
don't -- well, we don't need to. ' m sorry. | t
took me a mnute. It's been a -- yesterday was a
| ong day. We don't need to because we're applying
for an NSP, so the proximty tracts is irrel evant
since we're applying for an NSP. Sorry.

MR. MCCLURE: Ms. Vance, the argunent
you're making is that you're renoving tracts rather
t han adding tracts, which means that the standard
HSU woul d have to be able to include that south half
of the south half. It seens your argument was that
you were going to align your 320s north/south, even
t hough the well's orientated east/west, which is an
ongoi ng di scussion, don't get me wrong, but it's the
di scussion that may not be needed here assum ng that
the intent is to consider that 4HA proximty well.

MS. VANCE: | mean, if that's the
division's view that's fine, but either way we're
applying for an NSP. And | believe we net the
I ntent of the notice requirenment under the rules
that | just explained.

MR. MCCLURE: Thank you, Ms. Advance. MWy

initial review |l did mss that that 4H was cl ose

Page 42

Veritext Lega Solutions
Caendar-nm@veritext.com 505-243-5691 WWWw.veritext.com



© 00 N oo o b~ W N P

N R N N R R N N =
o A W N P O © 0O N O 0o &~ W N +—» O

enough to the center of the section to bring in that
south half. So |I have no further questions for this
case M. Hearing Exam ner. And we take that

advi senment .

HEARI NG EXAM NER: We can? Okay. Great.
Thank you, Ms. Vance. We'I|l| take this case under
advi sement. Thank you. I'mcalling number nine on
t he docket is SPUR Energy Partners 24989.

MS. HARDY: Good norning, M. Exam ner.
Dana Hardy with Hi nkle Shanor on behal f of SPUR
Energy Partners.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Are you aware of any
ot her parties.

MS. HARDY: There are no other parties.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Thank you.

Thank you, Ms. Greer. You can turn on of
your camera now.

MS. HARDY: |In this case, SPUR seeks an
order pulling on commtted interests fromthe top of
the -- formation to 5,000 feet nmeasured depth.
Underlying a 160 acre nore or |ess standard
hori zontal spacing unit conprised of the north half
of the south have of section seven, township 17
sout h, range 30 east in Eddy County SPUR seeks to
dedi cate the unit to the MEREX seven federal 10H and
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51H wel | s.

Our exhibits include the self affirm
statenment of |and man and Red Dol ton and geol ogi st
Mat t hew Vanwi , both of whom have previously
testified before the division and been recogni zed as
experts in their respectful fields. SPUR is only
pul ling overriding royalty interest here as all
working interests are commtted to the wells. W
filed amended exhibits yesterday at M. MClure's
request to include APl nunmbers for the wells that
are identified on the cross section exhibit, which I
believe is B3.

As set out in Exhibit C, we timely sent our
notice letters on Novenber 15th and tinely published

noti ce on Decenber 7th. So unl ess there are

guestions, | request that the exhibits be admtted
and that the case be taken under advi sement. Thank
you.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Are there any
obj ections? Not hearing any, your exhibits are
admtted into evidence. Are there any questions,
M. MClure, for her w tnesses?

MR. MCCLURE: M. Exam ner, | have no
guestions for this case.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Very good. And Freya
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are there multiple exhibit packets that you have to

renpve sonme?

MS. TSCHANTZ: | believe so, and | wll do
t hat .

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Thank you, Ms. Hardy,
your case is taking under advisement. Moving on to
number 10 on the docket. It is 24993, Mewbourn O |.

MS. HARDY: M. Exam ner, Dana Hardy wth
Hi nkl e Shanor on of behalf Mewbourn O| conpany.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: We had Hol | and & Hart
representing them Did that did that substitute,
counsel ?

MS. HARDY: No. The spreadsheet incorrect
on several of these cases.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: | agree.

MS. HARDY: No, she wasn't handling the
case.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Do you know of any ot her
parties?

MS. HARDY: There are no parties.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Pl ease proceed.

MS. HARDY: Mewbourn seeks an order pulling
on commtted interest in the Wolfcanp formation
underlying a 1269.92-acre nore or |ess nonstandard

hori zontal spacing unit conprised of sections 19 and
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20 township 21 south, range 27 east in Eddy County.
Mewbourn seeks to dedicated the unit to the canal
2019, fed com 712H, 714H, 716H and 718H wel | s,

OQur exhibits include the self-affirm
statenments of |and man Brad Dunn and geol ogi st
Charl es Crosby, both of whom have previously
testified and been recogni zed as experts in their
fields. As set out in Exhibit C, we tinely sent our
notice letters on Decenber 6th and Decenber 19th,
and timely published notice on December 12th. We
did file admtted exhibits yesterday at
M. MClure's request to correct the pool nane and
code. So with that, | request the exhibits be
admtted and that the case be taken under
advi senment .

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Are there any other
obj ections? Not hearing any, your exhibits are
admtted into evidence. Freya, would that nean that
there's a duplicate exhibit packet in this case?

MS. TSCHANTZ: If there is, | will remve

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Thank you.
M. MClure, any questions for Ms. Hardy's
Wi t nesses?

MR. MCCLURE: M. Exam ner, | have no
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guestions for this case.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Very good. This case

will be taken under advisement. Moving now to
nunmber 11 on the docket. It is BTA O Producers
25002.

MS. McLEAN: [It's me, Jackie McLean from
Hi nkl e Shanor on behalf of BTA. The next several
cases, so 11, 12, 13, 14, those are all ours just to
| et you know.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: And are you presenting
all of then?

MS. McLEAN: ['Il be presenting two and
then Ms. Hardy al so. Case nunmber 18 is ours.

THE COURT: Okay.

MS. McLEAN:  And | think those were the
only other errors just so you know who to | ook at.

HEARI NG EXAM NER:  Ms. MclLean, are there
any other parties that you know of in this case?

MS. McLEAN:  Yes. Perm an Resources is in
this case.

MS. VANCE: Good norning, M. Hearing
Exam ner. Paula Vance with the Santa Fe Office of
Hol | and & Hart on behal f Perm an.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Ms. Vance, had you filed

an objection?
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MS. VANCE: No.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: You did not. Have you
reviewed the exhibits?

MS. VANCE: | have. We're just preserving
rights.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Fi ne. So you don't
object to any of exhibits?

MS. VANCE: No.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Ms. MclLean.

MS. McLEAN:  Thank you. |In case nunber
25002, BTA applies for an order pooling all
uncommtted interest in the Pennsyvani an shel f
formati on underlying a 6140-acre nonstandard
hori zontal spacing unit conprised of the west half
sout hwest corner of section 12, west half west half
of section 13, west half north west corner of
section 24, the east half southeast corner of
section 11, the east half east half of section 14,
and the east half northeast corner of section 23
township 17 south range 35 east and Lee County.

And this unit will be dedicated to the box
el der 22115241312 state com nunmber 3H and 4H wel |l s.
The exhibits submtted by BTA in this case include
the self-affirmstatenments of |and man

Christine Ranpos and geol ogi st the David -- Tron,
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bot h of whom have previously testified before the

di vi sion and have been recogni zed as experts. And |
al so wanted to note that Yates Energy, who is

i ndi cated as hi ghlighted party to be pool ed has
signed a JOA and are no |onger being pooled in this
case. They did receive notice of the hearing.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Does that mean you're
going to file an anmended exhibit to renmove thenf

MS. McLEAN:  We were hoping not to, but
that's how we're going to say it on the record, but
if the division requires us to do so, we can.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Let me ask M. MCl ure.

MR. MCCLURE: M. Hearing Exam ner, they're
going to need to refile an anended exhi bit packeting
anyway, so they m ght as well update that.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Perfect. Thank you.
Looks li ke -- com ng.

MS. McLEAN:  Yes. Okay. So, we'll add
that to the list. And then Exhibit C, the notice
exhibit, it shows the notice letters were tinely
sent to Decenber 11th, 2024 and notices published on
December 12. So | know there's going to be
guestions, but | ask that the exhibits submtted for
case nunber 25002 be admtted into evidence and the

case be taken under advi senment.

Page 49

Veritext Lega Solutions

Caendar-nm@veritext.com 505-243-5691 WWWw.veritext.com




© 00 N oo o b~ W N P

N R N N R R N N =
o A W N P O © 0O N O 0o &~ W N +—» O

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Are there any
obj ections? Not hearing any, your exhibits are
admtted. M. MClure, any questions for

Ms. McLean's witnesses?

MR. MCCLURE: M. Examner, | don't have
any questions. | just have a request in regards to
the pools. Admnistrative checklist. M. MLean,

there's a pool that's established in a hearing
border as a little piece of this. The northwest
border of section 24 is, actually, within the vacuum
Ci sco Canyon northeast pool. The pool code for that
Is 972 vil 2. Do you need know to repeat any of
t hat for you?

MS. McLEAN:  Vacuum Cisco Canyon northeast
pool, code 972 02.

MR. MCCLURE: Yes. And that was the
nort hwest quarter of section 24.

MS. McLEAN:  So, would you like, then, to
see 102s?

MR. MCCLURE: Yeah. At the tine of
subm ssion of APD, they'll definitely need to be
C102s, so yes if you update the C102, then, yes, we
shoul d have two separate Cl02s, one for each poo
for each of the wells included. And then I'll also

want the quasi pooling adm nistrative checklist to be
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amended to include both pools.

MS. McLEAN:  Okay. We can do that.

MR. MCCLURE: Thank you. Nothing further
for me to this case M. Hearing Exam ner.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Thank you. So
Ms. McLean, do you want to just repeat on the record
what you're going to anmend in the your exhibit
packet ?

MS. McLEAN:  Yes. We are going to anend
Exhi bit A3 to renove the Yates from being pool ed.
Then we're going to amend the compul sory pooling
checklist to include both pools. And we wll add
two new Cl02s to the packet. ©One for each well that
reflects that vacuum Cisco Canyon pool.

THE COURT: Thank you. Okay. How |long do
you need?

MS. McLEAN:  Can we have till Monday | ust
with the C102?

HEARI NG EXAM NER: So we have January 13th
cl ose of business. Does that work for you?

MS. McLEAN:  That worKks.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Okay. We'll |eave the
record open in this case. So we're in recess in
25002. "1l call 25003.

MS. McLEAN: Jackie McLean on behal f of
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St eward Ener gy.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: And do you know whet her
t hey were any other parties in this case?

MS. McLEAN:  There are none.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Okay. Pl ease proceed.

MS. McLEAN:  Thank you. | n case nunber
25003, Steward applies for an order pooling all
uncomm tted interests and the San Andres formation
underlying a 479.62-acre nore or |ess standard
hori zontal spacing unit, conprised of the west half
of section two, and the northwest quarter of section
11 township 13 south range 38 east in Lee County.

And this unit will be dedicated to the
vents Federal 5H well and it's in proximty tract
unit. Our exhibits include the self-affirm
statenments of |and man Cooper New an and geol ogi st
t he James Vess and while M. Vess has previously
testified as an expert in geology, M. New an has
not. And we have attached his resune as Exhibit Al
to the packet that was submtted in this case. And
it is Page 7 of the PDF.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Thank you. | see
M. Newl an on the camera. M. Newlan will you raise
your right hand pl ease.

COOPER NEWLAN,
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havi ng been first duly sworn to state the whole
truth, testified as foll ows:

MR. NEWLAN: | do.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Wbul d you state and
spell your name for the record.

MR. NEWLAN: My nanme is Cooper New an,
C-O00OP-E-R N E-WL-A-N

HEARI NG EXAM NER: And are you seeking to
be admtted as a -- or recognized as an expert as a
| and man before this division?

A.  Yes, sir.

Q  What education do you have toward that?

A. In 2014, | received ny degree in energy
Commerce from Texas Tech.

Q Okay. And since that tinme, what experience
do you have?

A. | began in the field working for a broker
putting together the City of Mdland play for David
Errington, and then | crewchiefed a team doing the
sanme thing at Big Spring --

THE COURT: M. New an, before you conti nue
|'msorry, | can barely hear you, and | don't think
the court reporter is going to be able to pick up
this. Wuld you speak up | ouder and start from your

experience, again, what goes towards your expertise
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as a | and man.

A. Yes, sir. | apologize about that. | began
in the field working for a broker putting together
in the City of Mdland for David H Errington, and
then | crew-chiefed a group for the same broker,
different client doing the same thing in Big Spring,
Texas, and then I got on with Steward Energy, and
|'ve been handling everything, as they say, cradle
to grave, and | put together every exhibit for the
comm ssion for Steward Energy for RVP.

Q OCkay. And how | ong have you been with
St ewar d?

A. Six years.

Q And what is your title there?

A.  Senior |and man.

Q Okay. Fromhere on in, you're recognized
as an expert in land man matters before this
di vision. Okay. Ms. MlLean, you were saying?

MS. McLEAN: Yes, thank you. Then we have
Exhi bit C, and notice exhibit and notice was tinely
sent on Decenber 11th and published on Decenber
15th. Wth that, | ask that exhibits submtted for
case nunber 25003 be admtted to evidence and that
t he case be taken under advisenent.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Are there any

Page 54

Veritext Lega Solutions
Caendar-nm@veritext.com 505-243-5691 WWWw.veritext.com



© 00 N oo o b~ W N P

N R N N R R N N =
o A W N P O © 0O N O 0o &~ W N +—» O

obj ections? Not hearing any, your objections are
admtted into evidence. M. MClure?
MR. MCCLURE: M. Hearing Exam ner, | do
have questions for both the |and man and geol ogi st.
HEARI NG EXAM NER: Let's start with the
| and man.
MR. McCLURE: M. New an, can | direct your
attention to Page 16 of 47. This is the start of
t he breakdown of summary of interest.
A.  Yes, sir.
MS. MCLEAN:. Wbuld you like ne to share ny
screen?
HEARI NG EXAM NER: Yes, please. Hold on,
M. Newl an, we're going to share a screen so we can
all see what M. MClure is referring to.
MR. MCCLURE: M. New an, are you | ooking
at the same thing we are?
A.  Yes, sir.
Q Okay. Looking specifically at Carnegie
Energy, LLC, do you see the line I"'mreferring
t here?
A.  Yep.
Q Nowin the right colum it says commtted
AFE executed. Does that mean that Carnegie is

commtted, or does it nmean that they're being
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requested to being pool ed here?

A. | nean, they just have agreed to the
devel opment and signed an AFE. |'mnot really sure
what el se to say, other than that they are going to
participate in drilling the well.

Q So is Steward Energy asking the division to
force pool thent

A. Yes, sir, just in the event that they don't
pay their fair share of the drilling costs when the
time cones.

Q Are they signed on to a JOA?

A. No, sir. They just signed and executed the
AFE wel | proposal that we sent in conpliance with
the notice standards of the comm ssion.

Q | nmean, so when it says commtted there,
you're referring to or singled a well, but not the

entire pooled area; is that accurate to say, then?

A. Well, if they don't want to participate in
the future well, if you go to drill if you'd like it
to have them pooled, so we can recoop the drilling

cost that they are not going to commt to.

Q So, their inclusion in -- let me back up.
In this table here, there is a section that's |isted
as uncommtted. And they are included under that.

Do you see what |I'mreferring to?
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A. Yes. And they haven't responded to any
notices that we've sent nor signed any AFE.

Q But you just said that Carnegie Energy did
sign -- did agree to participate in this -- well?

A. Yes. And then when we good to send the
second round of the final AFE before drilling and if
they don't pay their share fair share, we would |ike
to have the ability to force pool themif they're
not going to participate in the well.

Q But they agreed to participate in the well
at this point; is that correct?

A. Yes. And this is just a perspective notice
to comply with the notice standards, and then we'll
send secondary final AFE 30 days before drilling.
And if they don't want to pay their fair share, we
woul d I'i ke to have that ability to force pool them
in the event that they wal k back their comm tnment at
this point in tinme.

MS. McLEAN:  WMay | ?

MR. MCCLURE: So Ms. McLean, if you have
anything to share as long as the Hearing Exam ner is
fine with it.

THE COURT: M. MClure, to keep this
record clean, let's finish with any questions for

this witness, and then we'll good to Ms. MLean.

Page 57

Veritext Lega Solutions

Caendar-nm@veritext.com 505-243-5691 WWWw.veritext.com




© 00 N oo o b~ W N P

N R N N R R N N =
o A W N P O © 0O N O 0o &~ W N +—» O

Let's do it that way. So are you done asking
guestions to M. New an?

MR. MCCLURE: M. Hearing Exam ner, | am
done asking questions for M. New an.

THE COURT: Okay. So, why don't you ask
Ms. McLean whatever you want to and then we can go
to the other witness, if necessary.

MR. MCCLURE: Ms. MclLean, if you have any
clarity, | guess, to offer in this situation,
pl ease, feel free to do so.

MS. McLEAN:  Yes. So | think that the
| ssue here is that Carnegie and sone of other
parties have signed an AFE an affidavit for
expenditure. So they've agree at this tine ahead of
the pooling to pay their share of the well cost.
They have not signed on to a JOA, which would be,
you know, they are comm tted, quote, to the spacing
unit. Be under the rules and the hearing order,
Steward is going to have to have to repropose these
wells after we get the order.

At that time, if Carnegie decides they
don't want to sign the AFE, we have the order that
shows that their pool and we can add the 200 percent
penalty on top of that, if necessary. So at this

time they have executed an AFE, but | think that
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M. Newl an and in abundance of caution and Carnegi e,
t hey have not entered an appearance, they have not
objected in this proceeding, he wishes to pull them
in case once they repropose those wells. They
deci de they are not going to pay their share of the
well fees and costs. Does that clarify things a
little nmore?

MR. MCCLURE: Yes, Ms. MlLean, yeah. It
does clarify. Thank you.

THE COURT: Do you have any other questions
M. MClure?

MR. MCCLURE: Yes, | do, M. Exam ner, for
t he geol ogi st.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Geol ogi st, okay. Let's
get the geol ogi st under oath. VWhat is the nane of
t he geol ogi st?

MS. McLEAN: Janes Vess.

THE COURT: So M. Vess, would you raise
your right hand.

JAMES VESS,

havi ng been first duly sworn to state the whole
truth, testified as follows:

MR. VESS: | do.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Thank you. Would you

state and spell your name for the record.
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MR. VESS: Janmes Vess. J-A-ME-S, V-E-S-S

HEARI NG EXAM NER: And | think Ms. MLean
said that you had previously been qualified before
this division as an expert.

A. Yes, sSir.

Q In what field?

A. Geol ogy.

Q Ckay. Thank you.

M. MClure?

MR. MCCLURE: Thank you, M. Hearing
Exam ner. M. Vess, can | draw your attention to
your cross-section. That's on Page 28 of 47.

A. Yes, sir, |'m here.

Q On this cross-section, is the formation --
I's any formation tops depicted here?

A.  You can see the black lines are the
formati on tops. However, they are not | abel ed.

Q Can you describe for me which formation
tops those would be, then?

A. Yes, sSir. The top marker there would be
the top of the Pimarker, P-1-MA-R-K-E-R. That's
kind of regional top that's used for depicting the
top of the reservoir in the San Andros. And then
t hat bottom bl ack marker woul d be our base of

Dolomte reservoir. The interval of interest in the
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green bracket is kind of the top of the reservoir to
base a reservoir. And then we have internal
formation target that we identify within that

i nterval of interest for horizontal targeting.

Q So it's the top of the Grayburg -- or
excuse me. The top of the San Andros and the top of
the Corieta depicted here?

A. No, sir. It's the top of the Pimarker,
which is a sub-marker within the San Andros. And
t hen that bottom marker you see in the cross-section
is the base of the Dolomte reservoir within the
San Andr os. The G orieta is nuch further down, not
depicted on the cross-section. And the top of the
San Andros is above the marker not depicted in the
cross-section. So these are sub-markers within the
San Andros formation.

Q Ckay. Thank you, M. Vess. Vhat |'m going
to ask is if we can resubmt this exhibit with those
sub- markers depicted there, | guess, since we don't
have any actual formation tops on this area that
we're seeing here?

A.  How would you like them marked? Wth just

a name or a depth or both?

Q WwWell, yeah, if you want to put a |line
across -- if it's these black lines that's fine. | f
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you can identify the black lines as such, | guess,
just off to the side, some sort of |abel?
A. Not a problem

MR. M CLURE: Thank you, M. Vess.

Thank you, M. Hearing Examner. | have no
further questions for this case.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Ms. McLean -- thank you,
M. Vess and M. Newl an. Ms. MLean, when will you
file the amended exhibit?

MS. McLEAN: 1'd like to ask M. Vess when
he think he m ght have that prepared.

MR. VESS: | can send that over to you here
in the next 30 to 45 m nutes.

MS. McLEAN:  Okay. We should be able to
get it in by tonorrow, then.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: So, we will set a
deadl i ne for January 10, close of business for an
amended exhi bit packet with a cover letter and we
will |eave the record open until that tinme. And
then we'll take it under advi senment. Thank you,
again. And we're in recess in this case.

"' m now going to call BTA O Producers.

It is nunber 13 on our docket, 25004.

MS. HARDY: M. Exam ner, Dan Hardy with

Hi nkl e Shanor on behalf of BTA G| Producers.
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HEARI NG EXAM NER: Are there any other
parties that you know of?

MS. HARDY: There are not.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Pl ease proceed.

MS. HARDY: Thank you. BTA seeks an order
polling on commtted interest in the Pennsyl vani an
shell formation underlying a 319.42-acre, standard
hori zontal spacing unit conprised of the east half
of the west half of section 33, township 16 south
range 36 east. And |lot three, the southeast corner
of the northwest corner and east half of the
sout hwest corner, which is the east half, west half
equi val ent of irregular section 4, township 17 south
range 36 east in Lee County. The unit will be
dedi cated to the Capitan 2230133-4 state com 23H
well. Our exhibits include the self-affirm
statements of |and man Adans Davenport and geol ogi st
JT Trong, both of whom have, previously, testified
before the division and been recogni zed as experts
in their fields.

We filed an anended exhi bit packet
yesterday norning that includes updated version of
exhibits A3 and A5 with respect to the identity of
t he pooled parties. As set out in Exhibit C we

timely sent our notice letters on Decenber 9th and
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11t h, 2024 and tinely published notice on Decenber
11, 2024. Wth that, | request that the exhibits be
admtted and that the case be taken under

advi sement .

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Are there any
obj ections? Not hearing any, your exhibits are
admtted into evidence.

Freya, would you renove any ol der exhibit
packets than the one that was just filed?

MS. TSCHANTZ:  Yes.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Thank you.

M. MClure, any questions for Ms. Hardy's
W t nesses?

MR. MCCLURE: M. Exam ner, | have no
guestions for this case.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: This case will be taken
under advi senment. Thank you. I'mcalling number
14, 25005.

MS. HARDY: M. Exam ner, Dana Hardy on
behal f of COG Operating, LLC

MS. BENNETT: Good norning, M. Exam ner.
Deana Bennett on behalf of Cimarex Energy and only
nonitoring the case and preserving rights as
necessary.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Thank you. Ms. Hardy.
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MS. HARDY: Thank you. COG seeks an order
approving a 1268. 12-acre nore or |ess nonstandard
overl apping horizontal spacing unit conmprised of all
irregular -- six and seven township 24 south, range
33 east in Lee County and seeks to pool uncomm tted
Interest in the Bone Spring formation within the
unit excluding the Aval on interval, which is defined
as the depths of 9,175 feet to 10,090 feet TBD.

COG seeks to dedicated the unit to the
Macho Nacho state com 601H, 603H, 605H, and 607H
well. Our exhibits include the self-affirmed
statenments of |land man M chael Potts and geol ogi st
Ben Breyman, both of whom previously, testified and
been recogni zed as experts in their respective
fields. And here, COGis only pooling overriding
royalty interest as all working interest are
commtted to the wells. As set out in Exhibit C we
timely sent our notice letters on Decenber 11th and
timely published also on that date. Wth that, |
request the exhibits be admtted and that the case
be taken under advi senment.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Are there any
obj ecti ons?

MS. BENNETT: No objections.

HEARI NG EXAM NER:  Your exhibits are
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admtted into evidence.

M. MClure?

MR. MCCLURE: M. Hearing Exam ner, | have
a question for the geol ogi st.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Can we get your
geol ogi st on the screen?

MS. HARDY: | amlooking to see if he is
here. | am not seeing M. Breyman on the line,
M . Exam ner.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Do you want to take a
five-m nute break so you can get himon the |ine,
and we'll use that for other purposes?

MS. HARDY: Yes, please.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: We're going to take a

five-m nute break. We're off the record. Thank

you.
(Recess was taken.)
HEARI NG EXAM NER: Good nor ni ng.
(Hearing Exam ner's m crophone vol une
| ow. )

MR. RODRI GUEZ: M chael Rodriguez with
Civitas Perm an Operating and 1'd like to
consolidate this case with 25012, if possible.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: | had called 25010 and

25012. M. Rodriguez entered an appearance. |
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asked if he was presenting them together, he said
yes, | asked if there was any other parties, he said
no. So, please proceed.

MR. RODRI GUEZ: Thank you. In these cases,
Civitas seeks orders to extend tinme to commence
drilling operations under order numbers R22603A and
22604A. The exhibit packets submtted in these
cases are identical and include the self-affirm
statenment of |and man Chat Matney who has testified
previously before the division as an expert in
patrol and | and managers. And it al so contains the
sanple notice of hearing letters, which were sent
out on Decenber 19th, 2024, and the notice of
heari ng which was published al so on Decenber 19,
2024.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: M. Rodriguez, is
Decenber 19 tinmely.

MR. RODRI GUEZ: Yes, it should be.

THE COURT: Well, let's calculate it, if
you don't m nd. The actual notice is 20 days,
right?

MR. RODRI GUEZ: Correct.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: So, let's just check.
Looks i ke 20 days was yesterday, so | think you're

going to be okay. And published when?
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MR. RODRI GUEZ: The publication was
publ i shed on Decenmber 19th, the same day so that be
should be within the ten-day notice.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: That will be ten working
days, right?

MR. RODRI GUEZ: Correct.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: And you sai d that was
the 19th?

MR. RODRI GUEZ: Yes.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Don't count the 25th. I
don't think we count holidays, do we.

MR. RODRI GUEZ: No, we don't.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: | didn't think so.

Thank you. Yes, you're fine.

MR. RODRI GUEZ: Sounds good. And the
reason for the extension applications are delays in
federal permtting. And, therefore, at this tine |
request the exhibits be admtted into the record and
t he cases be taken into advi senent.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Are there any
obj ections? Not hearing any. The exhibits in both
cases are admtted into evidence. M. MClure, do

you have any questions on either case?

MR. MCCLURE: M. Hearing Exam ner, | do
not have any questions, but | do have a request for
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M . Rodriguez.
Sir, are you famliar with the proper
websi te address for the OCD.
MR. RODRI GUEZ: The proper website address?
MCCLURE: That's correct.
RODRI GUEZ: | am

> 3 3D

MCCLURE: And it will be fine for these
cases, but in the future, please ensure that you
doubl e check your tenplates to ensure that the
proper website address is included in the witten
noti ces.

MR. RODRI GUEZ: Ckay. Okay. So, the
notice letters that were sent out have the incorrect
OCD website?

MR. MCCLURE: Yeah. |If | can draw your
attention to Page 17 of 19. | believe both cases
are the same page. The top paragraph, let ne get it
pul l ed up on ny side.

MR. RODRI GUEZ: Ckay. | see that. Yes, |
think I borrowed these letters froman old tenpl ate.

MR. MCCLURE: Yeah. And currently the old
website automatically forwards people to the new
website, but if at some point in the future that no
| onger happens, this is definitely going to be a

I ssue, | guess.
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MR. RODRI GUEZ: No problem Wuld you |ike

me to submt -- well, | guess | can't really submt,
but going forward |I'll make sure to make that
change.

MR. MCCLURE: Thank you, sir.

Thank you, M. Hearing Exam ner, | have
not hing further for either of these cases.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Okay. Thank you. We'll
t ake these two cases under advisenent. | was
wondering why they're |listed as m scel | aneous as

opposed to AND.

MR. RODRI GUEZ: | was going to ask the sane
thing. |'mnot sure.
HEARI NG EXAM NER: | know t hat you guys

filed these and you sel ect drop down nenus, so |
didn't know if.

MR. RODRI GUEZ: We don't choose that
portion. W just submt the applications for
heari ng.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: So the hearing clerk
chooses that.

MR. RODRI GUEZ: Sonmeone at the OCD w ||

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Thank you. All right.
So we're off the record in those two cases.

Ms. Hardy, is your witness with us?
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MS. HARDY: He is, M. Hearing Exam ner.

THE COURT: Let nme recall case number
25005. MWMhat is the witness's nanme?

MS. HARDY: Ben Breyman.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: M. Breyman?

MR. BREYMAN: Yes, |'m here. Sorry about
t hat .

HEARI NG EXAM NER: And, we're waiting for
you to turn your canmera on. There you go.

M. Breyman, would you, please, raise your right
hand.

BEN BREYMAN,
havi ng been first duly sworn to state the whole
truth, testified as follows:

MR. BREYMAN: | do.

THE COURT: Would you state and spell your
name. And it sounds |ike you're going to be needing
to project your voice a little nore.

MR. BREYMAN: Okay. Yes.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Woul d you state and
spell your name for the record.

MR. BREYMAN: Yes. It is B-E-N,
B-R-E-Y-M A-N.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: And is that pronounced

Ben Breyman?
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MR. BREYMAN: Yes, sSir.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Okay. Thank you.

M. MClure?

MR. MCCLURE: Thank you, M. Hearing
Exam ner. M. Breyman, if | can -- hopefully your
screen is big enough to see what you're | ooking at,
but you're probably famliar with my question
anyway. |If | can direct your attention to your
cross-section, that's Page 39 of 107.

A.  Yes.

Q Listed on this cross-section is a third
Bone Spring target interval and a Wl fcanp shell
Interval. MVWhy is the Wbl fcanp shelf interval
i ncl uded on the cross-section?

A. That is included because the Wl fcanp shell
interface. And so | have both of those targets on
t here because of that.

Q That wolf canp target interval is -- is it
associated with this case in any way?

A. It is not. In this case, we are just
deal i ng what the Bone Spring. That's sonething that
| could go in there and edit and update.

Q Okay. Thank you, M. Breyman, that
answered ny questions, but I will request that we

submt an anended exhi bit packet with that Wl fcanp
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target interbowl renmoved?
A. Okay. | can do that.
HEARI NG EXAM NER: Thank you, M. MCl ure.
M. Breyman, have you been qualified as an
expert for this division before?
A.  Yes.
Q In what field?
A. Are you talking oil and gas field for the
area Lee County?
Q No. |I'm asking you what --
A. Geol ogy experti se.
Q. Yes, that's what |'m asking. VWhat's the

A. CGeol ogy, yes.
Q Thank you. How long will it take for you
to amend your exhibit?
A. | can have that done by the end of the day
t oday.
HEARI NG EXAM NER: Okay. Ms. Hardy, when
do you want to submt an anended exhi bit packet?
MS. HARDY: At the end of the day tonorrow
woul d be fi ne.
HEARI NG EXAM NER: So we'l | set a deadline
of January 10, cl ose of business for an amended

exhi bit packet with a cover letter explaining.
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Okay. We're off the record in this case. W'l|

| eave the record open, as | said, and we'll take

t hat under advi senment once that packet is submtted.
Thank you. |'m now noving on to nunber 17 and 18.
Well, let's just go to 17. And this is 3R
Operating. It is 25022.

MS. McLEAN: Jackie McLean from Hi nkl e
Shanor on behalf 3R, and it is consolidated with
25023. This is another one of those that |isted
Hol | and & Hart .

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Sounds good. So they
are -- they're not consolidate in ny record, but
you'll present themin consoli dated?

MS. McLEAN: Yes.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: So let me call 25023,
also. M. MLean, are there any other parties that
you know of ?

MS. McLEAN: There are not.

THE COURT: Pl ease proceed.

MS. McLEAN: Thank you. |In 25022 and
25023, 3R seeks to pool additional interests in the
units created by order nunbers R22846 and R22847.
The exhibits that we submtted include the
self-affirmstatenment of |and man Brian Van Severan,

who has previously testified as a | and man and has
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been recogni zed as an expert in his field. And then
| set out in Exhibit B, notice letters were sent on
Decenber 11th, 2024 and notice was published on
Decenmber 14t h.

Wth that, | ask that the exhibits be
subm tted for case numbers 25002 -- or 25022 and
25023 and that the cases be taken under advi sement.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Any there any
obj ections? Not hearing any, your exhibits are
admtted in both cases. What is the good cause for
ext ensi on?

MS. McLEAN:  We are pooling additiona
interest in the unit. W're not seeking an
extension of tine.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: So the AMD is wong?

MS. McLEAN: We're still amending the order
because we're asking that the additional entries be
pul | ed under the term of order nunbers R22847 and
R22 -- what's the other order? R22846 and R22847.
So it's still amending the order, but we are only
seeking to pull the additional interest.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: So you're not seeking
additional time, you're just trying to broaden the
scope of the order?

MS. McLEAN: Yes. We' ve di scovered nore
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parties that needed to be pool ed.
THE COURT: And that's considered anended.
| didn't know that. Good thinking.
MS. McLEAN:  Yes.
HEARI NG EXAM NER: Okay. M. MClure, any
questions in these cases?
MR. MCCLURE: M. Hearing Exam ner, | do
have questions for the |and man.
HEARI NG EXAM NER: And who is the [and man.
MS. McLEAN:  Brian Vanstavern, and he
shoul d be on the |ine.
HEARI NG EXAM NER: Thank you.
MR. VANSTAVERN: | am here. Can everybody
see me?
HEARI NG EXAM NER: Not yet. There you are.
Okay. Would you raise your right hand, please.
BRI AN VAN SAVEREN,
havi ng been first duly sworn to state the whol e
truth, testified as foll ows:
MR. VANSTAVERN: | do.
Q Wuld you state and spell your nanme for the
record?
A. My nanme is Brian Vanstavern. B-R-I-A-N,
V-A-N S-T- A-V-E-R- E-N.
Q Okay. And you're an expert in the field of
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| and man; is that right?

A. That's correct.

Q  And you've been previously recogni zed as
such before this division?

A.  Yes.

Q Thank you. WM. MClure?

MR. MCCLURE: Thank you, M. Hearing

Exam ner. M. Vanstavern, on your self-affirnmed
statenment for each of these cases, there's a
footnote that references that the intended
hori zontal spacing unit will be 640 acres for both
of these cases; is that correct?

A. | believe that is correct, yes.

Q Okay. Please provide us with an anended
conmpul sory pooling adm nistrative checklist that

i dentifies the correct HSU?

A.  Okay.
Q Are you famliar with what |'m asking
for -- | have no further questions for this witness,

M. Hearing Exam ner.

THE COURT: Okay. M. Vanstaveren, do you
under st and what he's asking?

MS. McLEAN: | think that we're in charge
of this checklist. And | believe for the cases, so

3R acquired this interest. This was originally
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pooled -- let me go to the case file here.

MR. VANSTAVEREN: | believe it was flat
creek.

MS. McLEAN: Fl at Creek, right, pooled this
some time back. 3R acquired those interests. When
Fl at Creek filed the original application on the
checklist, it said that they were asking for either
a 640-acre or 480-acre spacing unit to -- you about
the federal |ease and what they would approve. And
at this point it's been resolved and it will be a
640- acre spaci ng, but that was done by Flat Creek's
counsel with the initial application.

So |'m happy to anend -- | guess,

M. MClure, nmy question would be -- | don't know
how we woul d amend the entire initial exhibit
packet. Do you just want us to file a checkli st
with the cover sheet?

MR. MCCLURE: | was going to say | do not
want the original application by any stretch. Now
whet her you should submt this entire packet that
you submtted for this case with the addition of the
conmpul sory pooling adm nistrative checklist as a
suppl emental exhibit. 1'Il leave in the Hearing
Exam ner's discretion.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: So, Ms. MclLean, you know
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what M. MClure wants, right?

MS. McLEAN:  Yes.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Okay. And you don't
normally -- do you normally include the checklist in
an exhi bit packet?

MS. McLEAN:  Well, not with a reopen -- not
with an application to amend a prior order, but |
think | could just do, you know, our cover page that
says we are adding a conpul sory pooling checkli st
and then submt the whol e exhibit packet.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: So you're going to
submt a cover letter with the supplenmental exhibit?

MS. McLEAN: Correct.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Okay. Perfect.

M. MClure, can we take this case under advisenent,
or these cases under advisement once Ms. MLean
submts that?

MR. MCCLURE: Yes, we can, M. Hearing
Exam ner.

THE COURT: Very good. So Ms. MclLean, is
that for both cases 22 and 23?

MS. McLEAN: Let ne doubl e check the
exhibits here. | think it is or both. Yes, it is.
So I'll do it for both.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: And when will you be
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able to do that?
MS. McLEAN: 11l probably do it today.
It's just something that | can do on ny own.
HEARI NG EXAM NER: \Why don't we say

tonorrow cl ose of busi ness deadline the 10th of

January. We'|l |eave the record open for that and
we'll close the record and take these two cases
under advi sement. Thank you. We're off the record

in those cases. Calling now Marathon O | Perm an
case number 25024. It is nunmber 19 on our docket.

MS. BENNETT: Good norning, M. Exam ner.
Di na Bennett on behalf of Marathon O Perm an, LLC.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Good nmorning. Do you
know i f there are any other parties entered?

MS. BENNETT: There are no other parties.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Pl ease proceed.

MS. BENNETT: Thank you. |In this case
Mar at hon seeks to amend order nunmber R23066 to add
additional parties. Very simlar to the case that
preceded this. |In the exhibit packet we've included
t he decl arati on of Ryan Gyl | enband, who's previously
testified before the division and his qualifications
have been accepted as a matter of record as a | and
man. We al so included the application, the order

that we're seeking to amend, and a |list of the
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additional interest owners to be pooled as well as
the summary of context with those interest owners.

And, finally, we've included nmy notice
decl aration and notice was tinmely mailed on
December 16th and the publication was on
Decenmber 21st, which | just confirmed. M chair was
timely. And the reason for the amendnent is to add
a few additional parties that have -- were
identified after the order in this case was
originally issued. And with that, | would ask that
the exhibits in case nunmber 25024 be admtted into
the record and the case be taken under advi senment.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Are there any
obj ections? Not hearing any, your exhibits are
admtted into evidence. M. MClure, are there any
guestions for Ms. Bennett's wi tnesses.

MR. MCCLURE: M. Hearing Exam ner, | do
have a question for the |and man.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: What is the land man's
name.

MR. BENNETT: Ryan Gyl | enband.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: There he is. Okay.

RYAN GYLLENBAND,

havi ng been first duly sworn to state the whole

truth, testified as foll ows:
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MR. GYLLENBAND: | do.
HEARI NG EXAM NER: Excellent. Wuld you
state and spell your name for the record, please.

A. Ryan Gyllenband, R-Y-A-N
G Y-L-L-E-N-B-A-N-D.

Q Thank you. And you've been previously
qualified as an expert as a |land man before this
di vision, sir?

A.  Yes, M. Exam ner.

Q. Thank you.

M. MClure?

MR. MCCLURE: Thank you, M. Exam ner.
M. Gyllenband, can | draw your attention to your
self-affirmed statenment paragraph 11. This is
Page 4 of 40.

A. Yes, sSir.

Q In this paragraph it appears that
Mar at hon' s requesti ng overhead rates of 10,000 per
nonth for drilling and a thousand dollars per nonth
for producing; is that correct?

A. Yes, sir.

Q Now the approved rates in order are 23066
is $8,000 per nmonth for drilling and $800 per nonth
whi |l e producing. |s Marathon asking to amend that

portion of the order?
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A. No, sir. | think that was a m st ake. We
shoul d amend that and reduce it to the 8 thousand

and 800.

Q Okay. So then we can ignore those rates in

this paragraph 11 of your self-affirnmed statenent;
I's that correct?
A. Yes, sSir.
Q Okay. Thank you, sir.

Thank you M. Hearing Exam ner, | have no
further questions for this case.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Can we take this under
advi senment ?

MR. MCCLURE: Yes, we can, M. Hearing
Exam ner.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Thank you, Ms. Bennett.
Thank you very much, M. Gyllenband. Moving on to
Mat ador Production. This is 25034 and 24 -- sorry.
25036.

MS. VANCE: Good norning, M. Hearing
Exam ner, Paul a Vance with the Santa Fe Office of
Hol l and & Hart on behal f of Matador.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Are there any other
parties that you know of?

MS. VANCE: No, | don't believe so.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Do you want to present
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t hese two together?

MS. VANCE: Yes. Thank you. So in both of
t hese cases Matador is seeking to pool an
800. 29-acre nore or |ess spacing unit. One is for
t he Bone Spring, and then one is for the Wl fcanp.
And I'lIl wal k through those. So both include
acreage conprising the west half of sections three
and ten of township 21 south, range 32 east, and
that's in Lee County, New Mexi co.

I n case number 25034, that's the Bone
Spring case. Matador seeks to dedicated that
spacing unit to the proposed El ectra special 0310
fed com 101H, 121H, 131H, 135H, 122H, and 132H. And
the 135H I will note is a proximty well allow ng
for the enlarged spacing unit. And then we have
case number 25036. And that is the Wbl fcanp case
and that is Matador seeks to dedicated that spacing
unit to the proposed Electra special 0310 fed com
202H. I n these cases we have included a copy of the
application, provided the conmpul sory pooling
checklist as well as the self-affirmed statenments of
| and man Hox Hol der and self-affirnmed statement of
geol ogi st Anna Thorson, both of whom have previously
testified before the division and their credentials

have been accepted as a matter of record.
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M. Holder's statenent is Exhibit A and
i ncludes all the required | and man exhibits. And
then Ms. Thorson's statenent is Exhibit B and
i ncl udes the required geol ogy statenents.

Ms. Thorson did not observe any faulting -- any
faulting pinch outs or other geol ogical inpedinents
to the horizontal drilling of these wells. And
then, lastly, is the notice which includes ny
self-affirmed statenent of notice with a sanple
letter that was timely mail ed out on December 20th
and it times out today. | know. | was cal cul ating
this yesterday.

And then the notice of publication of the
affidavit of notice of publication, which was dated
December 20th as well and it timed out yesterday.

If there aren't any questions | would ask that the
exhi bits and sub-exhibits be admtted into the
record and that the cases be taken under advi senent
at this tine.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Thank you, Ms. Vance.
Are there any objections? Not hearing any, the
exhibits in both cases are taken into evidence.

M. MClure, any questions on these two cases?

MR. MCCLURE: M. Hearing Exam ner, no

guestions for either of these cases.
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THE COURT: Perfect. These two cases are
t aken under advisenent. Moving on to 22 and 23 on
t he docket. Both of them are Flat Creek Resources.
25046, 25053.

MS. SHAHEEN: Good norning, M. Hearing
Exam ner. Sharon Shaheen. Santa Fe Office of

Spencer Fane on be half of Flat Creek in the first

case. | belive M. Savage is entering an appearance
in the second case -- oh, I'"msorry. No. M
confusion. [|I'mentering an experience in both

cases. These are the.

MR. SAVAGE: M. Hearing Exam ner, we're
entering an appearance under two separate cases in
25053.

MS. SHAHEEN: Well, that's true. |'m not
conpl etely confused. Yes. |'mentering an
appearance in the first case and that has to do with
t he Jawbone wel |l .

MS. KESSLER: And M. Exam ner,

Jordan Kessler on behalf of EOG in the second case.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Thank you, Ms. Kessler.

So before | go to you, Ms. Shaheen, are you
entering an appearance in both cases?

MS. SHAHEEN:. No. |I'monly entering an

appearance in the first case.
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HEARI NG EXAM NER: So, then, you're
entering an appearance in 25046.

MS. SHAHEEN: That's right, and |
apol ogi ze. Yes, 25046.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Let's just take that
case by itself because it sounds |like there's other
parties, including M. Savage who hasn't entered an
appearance yet in 25053. So, back to 25046. How do
you want to proceed?

MS. SHAHEEN: | would like to proceed
presenting this case by affidavit.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Pl ease.

MS. SHAHEEN: In this case, Flat Creek
seeks to force pool the overriding -- owners and the
royalty owners in the Bone Spring formation and the
1280-acre spacing unit conprised of section two and
township 25 south range 26 east. And section 24
township 24 south range 26 east in Eddy County
New Mexi co dedicated to three Jawbone wells. Both
the witnesses, M. Gregory and M. Anderson have
previously testified before the division as expert
w t nesses and have had their credentials accepted.

These wells were previously pool ed as
standard units and each of the three wells have

al ready been drilled. 1In order to have conmnon
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facilities and conpliance with the BLM requirenents,
we needed to pool a larger unit. And the division
has al ready adm nistratively approved the

nonst andard proration unit, and we sinply seek to
pool the overrides and the royalty owners here today
in the larger unit.

The notice letter was sent out tinely on
Decenber 17th. That publication was occurred on
Decenmber 21st, which is also timely. Wth that, I
woul d ask that the division admt these exhibits
into the record and take this case under advi senent.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: So Ms. Shaheen, you have
an order in place, but you're not seeking to amend
t hat order, you're seeking a new order.

MS. SHAHEEN: That's correct.

THE COURT: Okay. Are there any
objections? No. Not hearing any, your exhibits in
25046 are admtted. M. MClure, are there any
guestions in this case?

MR. MCCLURE: M. Hearing Exam ner, | guess
| was hoping to ask Ms. Shaheen a little bit nore
questions about the topic that you had raised. The
exi sting orders.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Go ahead.

MR. MCCLURE: Ms. Shaheen, are you aware of
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whet her Flat Creek is asking the division to do
anything with the existing three orders?

MS. SHAHEEN: That's a good question that
had not occurred to me. We could ask that those be
termnated after this unit has been approved. After
an order has been issued in this case. | wouldn't
want to do that until an order has been issued in
this case because we've already drilled the wells,
so that would be a little awkward.

MR. MCCLURE: Thank you, Ms. Shaheen. So,
essentially, once this -- once as order is issued
for this case, then those existing three orders are
no | onger needed for anything; is that correct?

MS. SHAHEEN: | believe that is correct. |
haven't thought that through, but | believe that, I
don't know why we woul d need those other orders.
We've submtted a full application package with the
checklist for the larger unit. And the worKking
i nterest owners are all participating voluntarily.

So | don't believe there's a need for the other

orders.

MR. MCCLURE: Okay. Thank you.
M. Hearing Exam ner, | have nothing further for
this case.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Do we have a procedure
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for, let's say a supercedi ng order or do we not,
M. MClure?

MR. MCCLURE: M. Hearing Exam ner, | don't
see an issue. We just added additional ordering
par agraph for an order issue here whether we
term nated or used the term nol ogy, supercede.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Thank you, Ms. Shaheen,
we'll take that case under advisement. Let's nove
now to 25053.

MR. SAVAGE: Good norning, M. Hearing
Exam ner. Good norning, technical exam ner.

Darin Savage with Abadie & Schill, LLC, appearing on
behal f of -- Perm an owner 1LLC referred to here in
as a Flag Creek Resources.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Are there any parties
parties besides Ms. Kessler that you know of.

MR. SAVAGE: No.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Okay.

And Ms. Kessler.

MS. KESSLER: Good norning, M. Exam ner.
Jordan Kessler on behalf of EOG just preserving
rights here. | will not be objecting.

THE COURT: Perfect. Thank you.

M. Savage?

MR. SAVAGE: Thank you. Case 25053 covers
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| ands in section 13, 14, and 15 and township 19
sout h range 27, Eddy County New Mexico. The | and
man, M ke Gregory, has testified previously before
t he division and his credentials have been accepted
as an expert witness in petroleumland matters. The
geol ogi st, Tom Anderson, has testified previously
before the division as an expert witness and his
credentials have been accepted as a matter of
record.

In this case, Flat Creek seeks an order
pooling all commtted interests in the Bone Spring
formati on designating as an oil pool underlying
nonst andard 968-acre nore or | ess spacing unit
conpri sed of south half northwest quarter, and
sout hwest quarter of section 13. The south half
north half and south half of section 14. And the
sout h half northeast and the southeast quarter of
section 15. The unit will be dedicated to the
Cardigan fed comwells 132H, 133H, and 134H. Fl at
Creek will be applying for the approval of the
nonst andard spacing unit. Orientation of the wells
Is laid down east to west and the wells standard,
hal f standard | ocati ons.

M. Gregory's Exhibit A for case 25053

i ncl udes his |layman statenment. C102, ownership

Page 91

Veritext Lega Solutions
Caendar-nm@veritext.com 505-243-5691 WWWw.veritext.com



© 00 N oo o b~ W N P

N R N N R R N N =
o A W N P O © 0O N O 0o &~ W N +—» O

breakdown wi Il propose a letter with AFE chronol ogy
of context. And M. Anderson's Exhibit B includes
his self-affirmstatement along with the standard
suite with the five geol ogy exhibits show ng
potential for devel opnent of the unit as described
In his statenment. Exhibit C provides the
self-affirmstatenent of notice -- and publication
notice notice was tinmely mailed. Flat Creek found
all working interest owner to be |locatable. Letters
to two interest owners are listed as still in
transit.

Letters to overriding royalty interest
owners are listed as in transit. And six letters to
already royalty interest owners were returned. And
those letters were mail ed on Decenmber 18th. And
then we also did a publication by notice and that
was tinely on Decenmber 21st. And that was to
account for any unforeseen contingencies regarding
noti ce.

M. Hearing Examner, 1'd like to take a
noment to point out that this case, 25053, it wll
suppl ant cases 24808, 24809, and 24810 that were
filed by Flat Creek to cover the sane |ands and are
subject to a prehearing order dated Novenmber 11th,

2024. Perm an Resources had objected to those cases
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and contested hearing was set for February 4th,
2025. Perm an Resources and Flat Creek were able to
reach a resol ution.

They're differences over the subject plans
and that's what Perm an resources received notice in
this case; did not enter an appearance, but they did
wi t hdraw their objections to the previous cases.

So, Flat Creek will address this with the prehearing
order vacated or anmended as needed and di sm ss those
cases currently filed.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Okay. So let ne
under stand what you're saying. |If | |ooked at the
February 4 docket, is that what you're referring to?

MR. SAVAGE: Yeah. There's a prehearing
order that --

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Let me just get to the
docket. So, | have -- on February 4, | have the
followi ng cases. | have Al pha Energy's. You're not
tal ki ng about that case, are you?

MR. SAVAGE: No, sir.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: You're tal king about
Fl at Creek cases?

MR. SAVAGE: Flat Creek.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: COkay. Yeah. | do see
case numbers 24807, 08, 09, and 10 on that speci al
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docket. Are you saying that you'll be dism ssing
t hose four cases?

MR. SAVAGE: We'll be dism ssing 24808
t hrough 24810. And then we'll be addressing the
24807 by requesting an anended prehearing order or
vacating it.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Okay. And it's set for
-- so0, 24807 is set for contested hearing. Wat are
you going to ask nme?

MR. SAVAGE: 1'Il have to confirmw th ny
client, but it would be whether or not that goes
forward, if the objection is still in place that
woul d go forward as a contested hearing. |If the
rejection is resolved, it would go forward by
affidavit.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: It wouldn't go by
affidavit on that day. It would be noved to a
di fferent day. When do you anticipate advising the
di vi si on whether the objection is wthdrawn?

MR. SAVAGE: [|'Il confer with ny client as
soon as this hearings are concluded and we can ennil
Ms. Chance on that.

MS. HARDY: We had objected on behal f of
Perm an Resources to the cases that M. Savage is

referencing. And we did wi thdraw or objection
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yest er day.
HEARI NG EXAM NER: Did or didn't?
MS. HARDY: We did. To 24808 through

24810, but we did not w thdraw our objection to

24807.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Okay.

MS. HARDY: Okay. So | don't know if that
case will be dism ssed or what the plan is, but.

MR. SAVAGE: "1l confer with our client,
see what the status of that is. Obviously, it's
still in place and there's an objection on it. So
t he prehearing order that governs that case, that
governs the other cases that are being dism ssed, we
woul d |Ii ke to address that by requesting an
amendnment to that prehearing order, and we'll give
t he specification on that when we find out what the

details are.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Well, if there's --
okay. |'mnot sure -- so we're not tal king about
the case that | called right now W' re talking

about a different case. So, let nme call that case.
24807. Entries of appearance, please.

MR. SAVAGE: Darin Savage with Abadie &
Schill appearing on behalf of Flat Creek Resources.

MS. HARDY: Dana Hardy wi th Hi nkl e Shanor
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on behalf of Perm an Resources.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: And were there any ot her
-- before we go, were there any other parties
entered that case, M. Savage?

MR. SAVAGE: | would have to | ook at that

docket or | ook at the case itself.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: | don't see anyone el se.
Well, Ms. Shaheen did represent them but not any
| onger. | don't see anyone else, so we can take

about this case. So this case is set for a
contested hearing February 4. Are you saying you're
not going to be prepared for a contested hearing on
February 4?

MR. SAVAGE: No, |'m not saying that at
all.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Okay. Then, what are
you sayi ng.

MR. SAVAGE: |'m saying that this
particular current case is going to the supplant a
nunber of those cases that were set for
February 4th. The 24807 is still objected to. You
know, so it would still be a contested hearing,
whi ch we woul d be prepared for unless there's a
resol ution between the parties, in which case we

woul d ask for a revision of the prehearing
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statenment. Prehearing order.

HEARI NG EXAM NER:
need to revise a prehearing statenent.
IS not then it wll

obj ected to, j ust

| " m not sure that we

If the case

nmove on its

own to a different

docket

hearing by affidavit.

not worried about the prehearing --

t he prehearing order. And |

know t hat

about anmendi ng

t hree of the

m

four cases are now, you're going to be dism ssing.
MR. SAVAGE: Yes, sir.
HEARI NG EXAM NER: Ckay. \When do you think
you'll be filing a dism ssal?
MR. SAVAGE: We should do that by Monday.
THE COURT: All right. So back to the case
at hand. And that's case nunber 25053. Are you
finished with your presentation, or are you asking

me to accept the --

MR. SAVAGE: Yes, sSir. I

move to that the

Exhi bits A, B,

and C and al so addressed and entered

into the record for

HEARI NG EXAM NER:

this case.

Are there any

obj ections? Not hearing any objecti

exhibits are admtted into evidence.

ons, your

M. MCl ure,

do you have any questions for

case number

250537

MR. MCCLURE: M.

maki ng sure 1|

m | ooki ng at the right

Heari ng Exam ner,

case.

I''m

25053, |
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do not have any questions for that case.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Very good. W'l Il take
t hat case under advisenment. Thank you, M. Savage.

MR. SAVAGE: Thank you. Sir.

THE COURT: Cal li ng nunmber 24. Now, nunber
24 we're going to nove to the end of our docket so
' m not going to call OXY USA for now, but | wll
come back to number 24 at the end of our docket.
Let's finish out our docket by calling WX Energy
25058.

MR. SAVAGE: Good norning, M. Hearing
Exam ner. Good norning, Technical Exam ner.
Darin Savage with Abadie & Schell appearing on
behal f of applicant WPX Perm an Energy, LLC

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Do you know if there's
any other parties entered in appearance?

MR. SAVAGE: No, sir. There is not.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Pl ease proceed.

MR. SAVAGE: Case 25058 covers | ands and
east half of sections 26 and 35 and township 26
south range 29 east Eddy County New Mexico. The
| and man, Tim Prout, has testified previously for
this division and his credentials have been accepted
as a |land man expert witness in land matters. The

geol ogi st, Russel Goodin, GO OD-1-N, has testified
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previously before the division as an expert w tness
i n geology and his credentials have been accepted as
a matter of record.

In this case, WPX seeks an order pooling
all commtted interests in the Bone Spring formation
oil pool underlying a standard format 30.14 acre
nore or | ess spacing unit conprised of the east half
of sections 26 and 35. The unit will be dedicated
to the steel guitar 2635 fed comwells as seven
initial wells, orientation of the wells and unit are
standard north to south and the |ocation of the
wells are nonstandard. WPX will be applying
adm ni stratively for approval of nonstandard
| ocations. On M. Prout's exhibit for this case
I ncludes his land man self-affirmed statenent.

C102 ownership breakdown -- proposal letter
wi th AFE and chronol ogy of context. The geol ogi st
Exhibits B for this case include his self-affirned
statement along with four standard geol ogy exhibits
showi ng the potential for devel opment of the unit as
described in this statement. Exhibit C provides the
self-affirmstatenent of notice for mailing
publication. Notice was tinmely mailed. WPX found
all working owners to be |ocatable. The letter to

Pi oneer Natural Resources is listed as in transit.
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Letters to XGO Hol di ngs, LLC, Reed and
Stevens were returned. However, WPX contacted XTO
and reached Stevens. They both waived notice
t hereby satisfying that, in our opinion satisfying a
requi rement of notice as shown in Exhibit CA4.
Letters to five overriding royalty interest owners
are in transit. Notice by publication was tinmely
published to account for any unforeseen
contingencies. The letters were sent Decenber 19th
and publication of this was Decenber 21st.

M. Hearing Exam ner, at this tinme | nove
to Exhibits A, B, and C and all sub-exhibits be
admtted into the record for this case and that the
case be taken under advi senment.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Are there any
obj ections? Your objections are admtted into
evi dence. Are there any other questions,

M. MClure?

MR. MCCLURE: M. Hearing Exam ner, can |
request a ten-m nute recess before we conclude this
case?

THE COURT: Yes.

MR. McCLURE: Thank you, M. Hearing
Exam ner.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: All right. The tinme now
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Is 11:23 a.m and we'll come back on the record at
11:33 a.m O f the record.

(A recess was taken.)

THE COURT: It is 10:32. W are back on
the record after a ten-m nute break. M. MCl ure,
are you ready to proceed?

MR. MCCLURE: Yes, | am M. Hearing
of ficer.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: VWhich witness did you
have a question for?

MR. MCCLURE: |'m going to have a question
for the land man. | think | can just make a request
of M. Savage for the geol ogi st.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Sounds good. So
M . Savage, who's your |and man.

MR. SAVAGE: M. Hearing Exam ner, the |and
man i s Tim Prout.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Wbul d you turn your
camera on, M. Prout?

MR. PROUT: Yes, sSir. Well, it's not
wor ki ng here.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: M. Prout, if you need
some time to get your camera working we can go into
recess on this case and then come back after the

next case. Does that work for you?
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MR. PROUT: | think it's turning on.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: | think you're right.
Do you have a little slider over the, actual, canera
on your | aptop that nmaybe you need to slide?

MR. PROUT: No, sir.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: No cover?

MR. PROUT: No, sir.

THE COURT: All right. WelIl, we can't see
you so that's not working. W're starting to run
| ate. Why don't you get your canera working and
we'll conme back to you. We'll go on recess on this
case. And |'"mgoing to call case 25073, 74, and 75.
Entries of appearance, please.

MS. McLEAN: Yes. Jackie McLean with
Hi nkl e Shanor on behalf of Perm an Resources.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Thank you. Are you
presenting all three together?

MS. McLEAN: Yes, that's correct.

THE COURT: Do you know of any other
parties who have entered?

MS. McLEAN:  There are no other parties.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Feel free.

MS. McLEAN:  Thank you. |In case nunbers
25073, 25074, and 25075 Perm an Resources seeks to

pool all uncommtted interests fromthe top of the
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Bone Spring formation to the base of the second

Bone Spring interval only due to a depth severance
in the acreage. And Perm an Resources is seeking to
pool the entirety of sections 14 and 13 township 20
south range 28 east in Eddy County with the

exception of the south half north half of section 13

and that acreage will not be stranded because it is
currently producing acreage with another well. And
we've included that in the testinony as well. And
these facing units will be dedicated to the wonbat

13 fed comunit 121H, 123H, and 124H wells.

We filed anmended exhibits at the request of
M. MClure yesterday and these exhibits include the
self-affirmstatenents of [and man, Ryan Kurry, and
geol ogi st, Christopher Canton, both of whom had
previously testified. As set out in Exhibit C for
each case, notice letters were tinely sent on
Decenber 12th and notices published on
December 19th. Wth that, | ask that exhibits be
admtted in case nunbers 25073 through 25075 and
that the cases be taken under advi senent.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Thank you. Any there
any objections? The exhibits are admtted into
evidence. M. MClure, any questions on these three

cases.
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MR. MCCLURE: M. Hearing Exam ner, | have
no questions for any of these three cases.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: And you said that you
filed an anended exhi bit packet. Freya, would you
take out anything that conflicts?

MS. TSCHANTZ: Yes.

HEARI NG EXAM NER:  Thank you, very nuch.
These cases are taken under advi sement.

M. Prout, do we have your canera on?

MR. SAVAGE: M. Hearing Exam ner, may |
ask a question real quick?

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Yes.

MR. SAVAGE: So those w tnesses who have to
call in, is there a procedure for swearing themin
and having them answer questions with just audio or
do you need to see?

HEARI NG EXAM NER: | like to see them

MR. SAVAGE: Yes, sir.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: |' m the judge of
credibility as is M. MClure, and it's very hard to
j udge soneone's credibility when you can't see them

MR. SAVAGE: Yes. Understood.

THE COURT: So M. Prout, we still don't
have your camera on. Do you want to try to join

wi th your phone or sonmething that has a canmera? Oh,
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there you are. Okay. | see you. Sir. Wuld you
unnmut e your m crophone so | can hear you.
MR. PROUT: Yes, sir.
HEARI NG EXAM NER: | can hear you. Would
you raise your right hand.
TI' M PROUT,
havi ng been first duly sworn to state the whole
truth, testified as foll ows:
MR. PROUT: Yes, sir.
THE COURT: Would you state and spell your
name for the record.
A. Yes. TimProut, T-1-M P-R-OU-T.
Q Thank you. And have you been previously
qualified as an expert before this division?
A. Yes, sSir.
Q In what field?
A. Land.
Q Okay. M. MC ure?
MR. MCCLURE: M. Hearing Exam ner, was
that me you were asking?
HEARI NG EXAM NER:  Yes, sir.
MR. MCCLURE: Thank you, M. Hearing
Exam ner.
M. Prout, | guess | don't know if you have

access to your screen or not. | was wondering if |
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can draw your attention to Page 36 of 131. This
page has a table with, | think the overall ownership
of the proposed unit.

A. Yes, sSir.

Q Okay. Below that table it has a statenent
uncomm tted working interest owner seeking to
conpul sory pool. Do you see the statenment |I'm
referring to?

A. Yes, sSir.

Q Okay. |Is this just referring to the higher
tabl e where the individual tracts are deviated out
and sonme working interest owners are |isted and sone
comm tted and sone are list as commtted?

A. Yes, sir. The only working owner interest
that are in this list that's commtted is WX,

Q Okay. So WX is asking to force pool
pretty much every other -- well, every other working
i nterest other than itself; is that correct?

A. Yes, sSir.

Q Thank you, sir. Can you briefly rehash
what M. Savage was referring to when he was talking
about XTO Hol di ngs at Reed and Stevens?

A. Yes, sir. W sent the letters via
certified mail, and as we usually do to the | ast

known address that we were aware of. And when we
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di scovered that the letters had been returned, we
reach out to both parties and reed Stevens had been
acqui red by Perm an Resources, and we were unaware
and XTO was, actually, aware of the proposals. And
"' m not sure why it was returned, but both parties
wai ved. And between the letters and conpliance with
the rules and the intended recipients waiving we
believe that the notice issue was resolved and no
| onger an issue.

Q So just to confirm | have a handle on the
situation. Essentially, the written notice was
provided to the incorrect address for both Reed and

Stevens and XTO Hol dings; is that correct?

A. Correct. It was the |last known address we
had.

Q And, to cure notice your intent was to
provide -- or have them provide you a waiver of
protest?

A. Yes, sSir.

Q Okay. Thank you, M. Prout. | have no
further questions for this witness, but M. Savage,
the cross-section within the geol ogy exhibits, it's
on Page 64. Are you with nme, M. Savage?

MR. SAVAGE: Yes, sir.
MR. MCCLURE: Can we resubmt an anended
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exhi bit that has the APl nunbers for each of these
wel I's included?

MR. SAVAGE: Yes, we can do that.

MR. MCCLURE: Thank you, M. Savage.

Thank you, M. Hearing Examner. | have no
further questions, and |I think we can take the case
under advi sement.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Thank you.

MR. MCCLURE: Or excuse ne, after the
amended exhi bit packet. | apol ogize.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: | knew what you neant.
Thank you very nuch. Okay. So M. Savage, when
wll you be able to file the amended hearing?

MR. SAVAGE: Monday woul d be hel pful.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: That's the 13th, |
think. So close of business on the 13th. 25058,

the record will remain open until that tinme and then
we will take it under advisenent. And thank you,
M. Prout for your participation. |'mnow going to

call three Mewbourne cases. 25109, 25110 and 25111.
MS. VANCE: Good norning/ afternoon,

M. Hearing Exam ner. Paula Vance with the Santa Fe

office of Holland & Hart on behal f of Mewbourn.
HEARI NG EXAM NER: Thank you. Are there

any other parties that you know of ?
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MS. VANCE: | believe that COG entered an
appearance in our |ast case.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Ms. Vance, you know who
t he nane of the counsel ?

MS. VANCE: | believe it is either Ms. Ryan
or Ms. Hatly. If you give nme just one nmonent to
doubl e check.

UNKNOWN SPEAKER: |'monline. Sorry about
that. ConocoPhillips entered an appearance in this
case, but we are not objecting to a proceeding.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Okay. And | didn't
quite get your entry of appearance. Wuld you state
it for the record?

MS. RYAN: Beth Ryan on behalf of COG
oper ati ng.

THE COURT: In which case?

MS. RYAN. I'msorry. |Is this case 251117

THE COURT: That's one of the three cases |

cal | ed.

MS. RYAN: Yes. So just 25111. Not the
ot hers.

THE COURT: All right.

Ms. Vance?

MS. VANCE: Yes. And |I'mgoing to present
t he case number 25109 and 25110, first, and I'Il do
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that third case last. Just so you know our |and man
has not previously testified, so | don't know you'd
-- we've included a copy of her resume and if you'd
li ke to swear her in now.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Let's wait till after
and see if M. MC ure has any questions and
normally I would get them qualified for the future,
but we're running |late and we have a | onger case
com ng up Sso.

MS. VANCE: Sure. Okay. So I'll start
with case nunmber 25109 Mewbourne seeks to pool the
uncommtted mneral interest in the Bone Spring
underlying a 1572.79-acre nore or |less horizonta
wel | spacing unit. And this is a nonstandard
spaci ng unit, but Mewbourne has applied for an NSP
adm ni strative | ease through a separate process.

And for this particular case, the acreage includes

t he south half equivalent of irregular section seven
as well as the entirety of irregular sections 18 and
19. And that is in township 19 south, range 36 east
in Lee County New Mexico. And for that particular
spacing unit, Mewbourne seeks to dedicated the
initial or the proposed bl ack pearl 719 fed com 526H
and 528H.

And then in case 25110, Mewbourne seeks to
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pool the uncommtted m neral interest, again, in the
Bone Spring formation, both are the same pool, which
is the pearl Bone Spring south and the pool code is
49685. And in this particular case, it's a

1574. 79-acre nore or |less horizontal well spacing
unit. And it is conprised of the entirety of

irrel evant section 31. And that's township 18 south
range 36 east. And then the entirety of irregular
section six and then the north half of irregular
section seven. And then that's in township 19 south
range 36 east and that's in Lee County as well.

So, basically, case nunmber 25110 is the
north, and then case nunber 25109 is the south. So
t hey butt up against each other. And then with that
second case Mewbourne seeks to, initially, dedicated
the flying Dutchman 731, state com 526H and 528H to
t hat spacing unit. W have included in our cases,

t he hearing packets, a copy of the application, the
compul sory pulling checklist as well as the
self-affirm statenent of | andman Payton Warren,
agai n, she has not previously testified and we have
I ncl uded her resunme. And then we've also include

t he statenment of our geol ogist, Charles Crosby who
has previously testified before the division and his

credentials have been accepted as a matter of
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record.

So, with Ms. Warren, we have included her
statenment, which is Exhibit C, all of the requisite
| and exhibits are included. And then M. Crosby his
statenment is Exhibit D along about all the required
geol ogy exhibits. In cases, M. Crosby did not
observe any faulty pinch outs or other geol ogic
| npedi nents to the drilling of these wells. And
t hen we have included nmy self-affirmed statenent,
whi ch is Exhibit E and includes a sanple copy of the
notice letter which is dated on December 20th, 2024,
which tinmes out today. And our -- | did notice
because | calculated it. Our notice of publication
Is not tinmely. And so, it was published on
Decenber 24th, 2024, so | would just ask that the
record stay open to allow for the notice of
publication to be perfected.

| believe we do need to rely on it. |
won't take up the division's time, but | don't
believe all the noticed was delivered so, yes.

We'll need to rely on that notice of publication.
So | would just ask that the record stay open and
possibly if the division would allow it for us to
come back at the January 23rd docket to be able to

perfect notice. And with that, unless there are any
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guestions, | would ask that the exhibits and
sub-exhibits be admtted into the record and that
t hese cases be taken under advisenment at this tine.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Are there any
obj ections? Not hearing any, |I"'madmtting the
exhibits in these two cases into evidence.

M. MClure, any questions on these two cases?

MR. MCCLURE: M. Hearing exam ner, | have
no questions for these two cases nor the third case,
but I will have requests for each of the cases. And
under st andi ng that the applicant asked to continue
t hese cases due to notice, | wonder if maybe we
shoul d give her an opportunity to reeval uate whet her
she believes public notice was published in a tinely
manner .

MS. VANCE: | believe that's what | have
di scussed, M. MClure, which is we recogni ze that
our two publication in these particular cases, which
are 25109 and 25110 were published on Decenber 24th
so they are not tinmely. And so we are just asking
for the record to stay open and we'll cone back on
t he January 23rd docket to perfect notice at that
poi nt, but we recognize that it's not tinely.

MR. MCCLURE: Well Ms. Vance, | think you

m sunder st ood what | was getting at. Are you sure
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t hat between 4th would be untinely. What date did
you cal cul ate as being required for public notice

for this hearing?

MS. VANCE: Well, | use a little date
cal cul ator on the internet. And, so.
HEARI NG EXAM NER: I"ll calculate it. So

M. MClure, we don't count the 24th, that's the day
It was sent. We don't count the 25th and we're not
going to count the first. W also don't count
weekends. So we have 26, 27, 30, 31. Two, three,
so that's six days. The third is the 6th day. And
then we have seven, eight, nine, ten. Ten woul d
bei ng today.

MS. VANCE: | have tonorrow when | use the
little date cal cul ator thing.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: We're going to cone back
anyway. Well, | nean -- so M. MClure, are you
suggesting that it is tinmely even sending it out on
t he 24t h?

MR. MCCLURE: | mean, | believe it is, but
| would -- nmy review would conclude that the 24th
was tinely, yes.

THE COURT: So, you know, Ms. Vance there's
no one to object to it, and the division seens to

the think the 24th fits, so.
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MS. VANCE: We're perfectly fine with that.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: So M. McClure, what do
you want Ms. Vance to amend in these two cases.

MR. MCCLURE: Ms. Vance, the cross-section
within the geol ogy exhibit for both of these first
two cases include the small map that's overl aying
it. | have the page nunbers if that would be
beneficial to you, but if you're already famliar
with what I"'mreferring to.

MS. VANCE: |'mthere, and | can see it and
that's easy to renove.

MR. MCCLURE: Thank you, Ms. Vance. I f we
can submt an anended exhi bit packet with those --
with that map renmoved from both of these exhibit
packets.

MS. VANCE: Not a problem

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Ms. Vance, how | ong do
you need to amend the exhibit packets in both of
t hese cases?

MS. VANCE: | can get that done this
afternoon.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: How about tonorrow?

We' Il give you a close of business on the tenth as
t he deadline for these two cases.

MS. VANCE: Sure. |'mjust checking. |

Page 115

Veritext Lega Solutions
Caendar-nm@veritext.com 505-243-5691 WWWw.veritext.com



© 00 N oo o b~ W N P

N R N N R R N N =
o A W N P O © 0O N O 0o &~ W N +—» O

can renove it right now | can send it to you to
the division this afternoon.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: But you need a cover
letter, so let's just.

MS. VANCE: Tonorrow.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Tonmorrow at 5 o'clock to
give you the time you need. And then Freya wil
t ake out any other exhibit packets so that we don't
get confused. So we are in recess on these two
cases. We did not qualify your expert this tine.

So next time they appear, we'll get them qualified,
okay?

MS. VANCE: Okay. And can | go over ny
| ast case with you?

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Pl ease. Are you not
handl i ng Oxy.

MS. VANCE: No. M. Rankin, ny
counterpart, he will be doing that case.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Now. He's not here now.
| s he here. Oh, he is here. WIIl you let himknow
we're going to start Oxy in just a couple of
m nutes. | nean, it depends because that, you know,
he has to go back to the office. | can hold out if
you can hold out.

M. McClure will be done so we don't have
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to worry about M. MClure's feeding habits. And
when it cones to Ms. Chance, | mean, Ms. Chance if
you want to | eave or grab sonmething while we're
doi ng the hearing, you know, you could always end
the recording after you conme back later. We'Il|l just
have some dead space, that's all. So that way we're
not torturing everyone at once. Your witnesses are
avai l able for the Oxy case?

MS. VANCE: Yes. It's the same two
witnesses. I'msorry. Did you say -- |I'msorry.
You sai d Oxy.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: For the Oxy case wl|l
your wi tnesses be -- are they there.

MS. VANCE: | believe. | saw
M . Janacheck, he was on there and | saw a coupl e of
others, so | believe they're all there.

HEARI NG EXAM NER:  So we'll get to that.

So, why don't you present your |ast case, Ms. Vance.
As briefly as possible.

MS. VANCE: As briefly as possible. So, in
case nunmber 25111, Mewbourne seeks in order
approving a 640-acre nore or |ess overlapping
nonstandard horizontal well spacing unit in the Bone
Spring formation and the pool is the Benson Bone

Spring and the pool code is 5200. And that is
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underlying the north half of section 12. And that's
I n township 19 south, range 30 east, and then we
have the in addition to all of irregular section
seven in township 19 south, range 31 east. And,
again, that's in Eddy County New Mexi co.

And then pooling all the uncommtted
I nterest owners in that acreage. And in this case
Mewbour ne seeks to dedicated the spacing unit to the
Zeekie 127 fed com611.H and then 613H. As | noted
we requested approval for the overlap overl apping
spaci ng unit. However, we sent out notice which
we' ve 1 ncluded a copy of along with the tracking
I nformation. No objections were received and so we
woul d just ask to drop that request fromthe
application. [It's not necessary at this point.

In this case, we've included the copy of
t he application provided the compul sory pooling
checklist as well as the self-affirm statenent of
t he | and man Payton Warran and geol ogi st, Charles
Crosby. Ms. Warran's statenment is Exhibit C.
Again, |I've include a diagram of the overlap al ong
with all the requisite land exhibits. And then
M. Crosby's statenment is Exhibit D along with all
the required geology exhibits. |In this case

M. Crosby did not observe any faulting pinch outs
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or geol ogical inpedinents to the horizontal drilling
of this well or these wells.

And then, lastly, is nyself affirmed
statement of notice along with a sanmple copy of ny
of the letter that went out, which was tinely. | t
went out on Decenber 20th, 2024. And then our --
the affidavit of notice of publication is also
I ncl uded and that time, that was sent out on
December 21st, 2024. And unless there are any
guestions | would ask that this case and the
exhi bits and sub-exhibits be admtted into the
record, and that this case be taken under advi senent
noting that if there is a diagramor a map over the
cross-section we'll renove that and | will re-file
as a revised exhibits for M. MClure.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Are there any objections
to the exhibits? Not hearing any, your exhibits are
admtted into evidence.

M. MClure, any questions on 251117

MR. MCCLURE: M . Hearing Exam ner,
actually, a question did come up after Ms. Vance's
presentation, but she can probably address it
because it's related to her presentation.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: All right. \What is the

guestion?
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MR. MCCLURE: Ms. Vance, you referenced
t hat the overl apping spacing unit is no |onger an
acreage. Can you rehash what you said about that.

MS. VANCE: Sure we provided notice which
Is, first of all, if you go to Page 17 of 51, you'l
see a diagramthat | put together that shows the
proposed spacing unit along with the existing
spacing units. And then if you go to page -- let ne
see here.

MR. MCCLURE: Ms. Vance, if | can interrupt
you. Maybe | m sheard you. Did you say that
there's no that you're no | onger requesting the
over | appi ng spacing unit or not?

MS. VANCE: We're no |onger requesting

approval because we haven't gotten any objections,

so there's no need -- | nean, if you -- that's
typically how we've treated it. |If there's no
obj ection then there's no requirenment -- there's no

need to request for approval, but if that needs to
be stated in the order that's fine, but, again,
there's been no objections received fromany of the
affected parti es.

MR. MCCLURE: No, Ms. Vance. | wasn't
referring anything on that. | was just -- when you

wer e going through your presentation, |
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m sunder stood and | thought that you neant that
there was no | onger going to be an overl appi ng space

unit, but now | understand where you're com ng from

So | have no further questions, but | will request
that you resubmt a -- go ahead Ms. Vance.
MS. VANCE: | was going to say, | don't

believe that this structural cross-section had a map
over it, but you tell nme if you're seeing sonething
and |I''m again happy to fix it.

MR. MCCLURE: Ms. Vance, yeah, this case

has a different request | guess for nmyself, not the
cross-section. | request a anended conpul sory
pooling adm ni strative checklist. The reason being

t hat section seven has an additional pool included

within it. That being the Hackberry Bone Spring

north.

MS. VANCE: Can | -- oh, please, go ahead.

MR. MCCLURE: Yeah. The pool code is
97056.

MS. VANCE: And you said that is 97056.

MR. MCCLURE: That is correct.

MS. VANCE: |In section irregular section
seven.

MR. MCCLURE: That is correct. All of
section seven is that pool. And then the pool that
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you currently have on the conpul sory pooling
checklist is in section 12. So that pool is correct
for section 12.

MS. VANCE: Okay. That's not a problem

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Ms. Vance, how much tinme
do you need to submt?

MS. VANCE: Tonorrow.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: So we will set a
deadl i ne of close of business on January 10 and then
we will take the case under advi senent once we get
your anended exhibit packet. And Freya will renove
the conflicting existing packet. Are you done with
t hat case?

MS. VANCE: | sure am

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Thank you for your
participation, Ms. Vance, have a nice day. | am now
calling the |l ast case on our docket. This is OXY
USA. It was nunmber 24 if our docket. It is case
number 25054.

MR. RANKI N: Good norning, M. Exam ner.
Adam Rankin with the Santa Fe office of Holland &
Hart appearing on behalf of applicant in this case.
We have three witnesses to present today. My
estimation is that the presentation of the w tnesses

will take probably about two hours in total because
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t hey have to present their testinmony.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Hold on one second.

M. Rankin, it's nmy understanding that our two
techni cal exam ners do have questions for your

w t nesses and have reviewed all of the exhibits
presented? Why do you feel as though you need two
hours to present your case?

MR. RANKI N: Well, M. Hearing Exam ner, |
guess ny thought would be -- it's possible | suppose
t hat we could just have the exam ners ask questions
of our wi tnesses. However, there has been no
testinmony submtted. Witten testinony. So all we
had filed so far is the application and suppl enent
exhi bit packet.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: There's no self-affirmed
st at ement .

MR. RANKIN: There are no self-affirmed
st at ement .

HEARI NG EXAM NER:  Well, | think we coul d,
dependi ng on the technical exam ners and what they
want to hear, and what 1'll do is I'll take five
m nutes and talk to both of them and ask them how
detailed of a sunmary of each of the three w tnesses
they would like to hear. Does that work for you?

MR. RANKI N: That works for ne.
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HEARI NG EXAM NER: All right. So, I'm
going to give you an opportunity to make a brief
openi ng statenent. Let's get the exhibits submtted
i nto evidence first.

MR. RANKI N: So M. Exam ner, | ast week we
filed with in preparation for today's hearing an
exhi bit packet. The exhibit packets contain OXY
Exhi bits A through D. Exhibit Ais a copy of the
application that was filed. The application has a
cover pleading sunmarizing what the applicant is
seeking in this case. Exhibit B is an updated set
of exhibits additional exhibits that were filed
suppl enmenti ng what was in the application and
provi ding sone additional exhibits including the
resunes of two of Oxy's w tnesses.

Exhibit Cis a notice affidavit that was
sent out by certified notice of affidavit, which
reflects we had provided notice to each of the
affected parties within a half mle of the proposed
objection. It has a letter that we sent out by
certified mail along with the list of the the
parties affected under the division's rules show ng
t hat we have done so and that have done so tinely.

Exhibit D is the application of

publication showi ng we published notice of the
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application and the newspaper of general circulation
in the area and did so tinely. So at this tinme,

M. Exam ner, | would nove the adm ssion of Exhibits
A through D into the record.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Okay. Are there any
obj ections? Not hearing any, your exhibits are all
admtted into evidence. M. Rankin, did you say
that you -- that this is an anended exhi bit packet?

MR. RANKIN: No. We only filed one exhibit
packet, but what we did was we attached additi onal
exhibits that were in addition to what was fil ed
with the application, so the application had a whole
series of material.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Okay.

MR. RANKIN: Support and the suppl enent al
filing -- well, the filing that we had sone
additional materials as well.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Thank you. If it's
acceptable to you, why don't we get all three of
your w tnesses sworn in. Let's get them al
qualified as experts, if they' re not already
experts. And can you tell me if they are all
previously qualified experts?

MR. RANKIN: They're not all. One is two

are not.
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HEARI NG EXAM NER: Perfect. So we'll deal
with that issue. And then, why don't you think in
your head between now and when we get to the
guestion, how nmuch tinme you feel each w tness needs
to summari ze testinony that you feel would be
hel pful to orient the technical exam ners because
they're all very famliar with the exhibits. Al so,
" mgoing to ask you if you want your three
W t nesses to appear as a panel.

MR. RANKIN: | think I would do what the
exam ners preference is on that point.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Okay. | think the
exam ners would |i ke the witnesses to appear as a
panel , but the exam ners also have the ability to
di rect questions to specific witnesses and if that
wi t ness doesn't have the answer, they can al ways say
' m not the right witness or sonmething of that
nat ur e.

MR. RANKIN: That's fine. | can give a
brief summary of what we're requesting here, and |
think with the grace of the exam ners we can wal k
t hrough the exhibits quickly with each w tness and
make sure that they're sunmarizing the high points.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: That's fair.

MR. RANKIN: And then turn over each of the
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wi tness as a panel to the division for
Cross-exam nati on.

THE COURT: That seenms |ike a good way to
proceed. So, let me think. Let's get all three
W t nesses on the screen at this tine. | see two
people. There we go okay. All right. Wuld you
all raise your right hand, please.

STEPHANI E NOONAN, STEPHEN JANACEK,

EDUARDO SEOANE,
havi ng been first duly sworn to state the whol e

truth, testified as foll ows:

Al | : | do.
HEARI NG EXAM NER: COkay. | heard three |
dos. Now M. -- okay. Wuld you each state and

spell your nanme for the record. Let's start with
Ms. Noonan.
MS. NOONAN: Hello. M nane is Stephanie
Noonan, spelled S-T-E-P-H- A-N-I1-E, N-O O N-A-N.
HEARI NG EXAM NER: Ckay. And M. Janacek.
MR. JANACEK: Yes. Can you hear know okay,
M . Exam ner?
HEARI NG EXAM NER: Very wel | .
MR. JANACEK: My nanme is Stephen Janacek.
And that is spelled, S-T-E-P-H-E-N. Last nane
J- A-N- A-C-E-K
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HEARI NG EXAM NER: And, finally, the | ast
Wi t ness.

MR. SEOCENE: Yes. (Good afternoon. M nane
I s Eduardo Seoane. Last name S-E-O-A-N-E. First
name Eduardo, E-D-U-A-R-D-O

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Thank you, very nuch.
Ckay. We have the witnesses sworn in now. Now, who
Is the -- | think it's M. Janacek. Your nanme is
famliar to nme so | think you' ve been qualified as
an expert previously. In what field.

MR. JANACEK: I n petrol eum engi neering.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: You're a petrol eum
engi neer.

Ms. Noonan, what expertise are you seeking
to be qualified as an expert?

MS. NOONAN: |'m a petrol eum geol ogi st.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Geol ogi st. Very good.
And M. -- how do you say your |ast nane, sir?

MR. SEOANE: Seoane.

HEARI NG EXAM NER:  Thank you, sir. \What
field are you seeking to be admtted as?

MR. SEOANE: Yes. As a conpletions
engi neer.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: As a what now?
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MR. SEOANE: Conpl etions engi neer.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Very good. Okay. So
let's start with you, Ms. Noonan. What education do
you have towards your qualification?

MS. NOONAN: | have a Bachel or of Science
degree in geology fromthe University of Texas A & M
at college station, and a Master's in Geol ogi cal
Sci ences from UT Austin.

Q  \When did you earn those degrees?

A. In 2011 and 2013.

Q  And what work have you done since you've
earned those degrees that qualifies you as an expert
I n geol ogy?

A.  From 2013 until today, | have been working
for OXY petroleum nostly for you Perm an base and
wor ki ng as a geol ogi st.

Q \What is your present title?

A l'ma senior staff geol ogist.

Q  For what conpany?

A Oxydent al petrol eum

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Very good. You are
hereby qualified as an expert in geology before this
di vision. Now M. Seoane.

MR. SEOANE: Yes. |'ma chem cal engineer

fromthe University -- Venezuel a.
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Q  \When did you earn that degree?

A. 2000.

Q Okay. What work have you done since then
to qualify yourself?

A. Yes. So |I've been working with Oxy since
2006 as a production reservoir conpletions engineer.
| was the conpl etions engi neer supervisor in 2012
for Perman. And then in 2015, |'ve been the
conpl etion supervisor for worldw de. And before
that | worked for Schlunmberger, and |I've worked as a
conpl eti ons engi neer factoring, cement, and coil.

Q What is your present title?

A.  Worl dwi de conpl etion engi neer supervisor.

Q You are hereby qualified as a conpletion
engi neer. |s that what you want or production
engi neer?

A. Conpl etion engi neer.

Q COkay. Conpletion engineer before this
division fromhere on in. OCkay.

Now M. Rankin, do you want to give a brief
openi ng?
MR. RANKIN: Yeah, | can do a very brief

opening, M. Examner, in this case, Oxy seeks an
order authorizing the conpany to inject for purposes

of enhanced oil recovery a pilot project in the
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second Bone Spring sand interval within the Bone
Spring formation. That will be dedicated to the
proposed project area conprised of approximtely 960
acres nore or |less in Eddy County New Mexi co.

"Il go ahead and descri be the township and
| ocations here. It's township 24 south. Range 29
east, section 17 it will be the west half. And then
In section 18 is the east half of the west half and
the east half of that section. | wll let
M. Janacek describe the details around the proposed
project here, but, essentially, there are potenti al
of six candidate wells that they're proposing for
potential injection. They will choose only one, but
they're asking for authority to inject into all of
them but will ultimtely injection into only one.

They anticipate that if the pilot project
wor ks as expected it will benefit enhance recovery
within the second Bone Spring, interval of the Bone
Spring formati on between approxi mately 9900 feet and
10, 100 feet true vertical depth. "1 | et
M. Janacek touch on the rest of the high Ievel
techni cal aspect of the proposal, but based on this,
M . Exam ner, we ask that the division approve this
pod project as requested in the application.

And I'Il -- with that, if there's any

Page 131

Veritext Lega Solutions
Caendar-nm@veritext.com 505-243-5691 WWWw.veritext.com



© 00 N oo o b~ W N P

N R N N R R N N =
o A W N P O © 0O N O 0o &~ W N +—» O

guestions |I'lIl go ahead and ask M. Janacek to
approach the stand and we'll have himreview his
testi nony.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Okay. And which
exhibits is M. Janacek, personally, responsible
for?

MR. RANKIN: M. Janacek is responsible for
overseeing all of the exhibits, but each of the
Wi t nesses have contributed slides to -- so |I'l
confirmas we go through which slides they each were
responsi bl e for.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Okay. M. Janecek, go
ri ght ahead.

MR. RANKIN: One nonent.

M. Janacek, you've already been qualified
to testify as an expert in petrol eum engi neering.
Can you pl ease provide us a brief summry and
overview of what it is that Oxy is requesting today?

MR. JANACEK: Yes | can. Adam would you
| i ke to share your slides or.

MR. RANKIN: | will. Here we go.

MR. JANACEK: Okay. G eat. | can see your
screen. Okay. Good norning. So, today with Oxy's
proposed pilot project in New Mexico. We're

proposing to initiate what we call an Intra-Well
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M scibility or IWM project. This is a type of
enhanced oil recovery or EOR injection project. And
this is within one single existing horizontal well.
As M. Rankin referred to earlier, there are six
wells we are seeking the approval for the authority
to inject into, but, ultimtely, we will be
selecting only one well for the pilot and only one
well will be part of this pilot project.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: M. Janacek, let ne
i nterrupt you for just a nonent.

M. Rankin, |'ve conferred with the
technical exam ners. W are going to give each of
t hese witnesses 15 mnutes to present sort of a high
profile overview of their positions as experts.
Know ng that these two technical exam ners have
spent a lot of tinme reviewing all of these
docunents.

So M. Janacek, please continue, but |I'm
going to start timng you at 12:15. Thank you.

MR. JANACEK: Okay. Geat. | wll set a
timer on ny watch as well. And with that said,
since |'ve had previous neetings with the technical
exam ners on this, | will try to highlight any
di fferences or updates since the previous

di scussi ons that we've had. So let me continue with
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wr appi ng up the project overview. Yes, | think we
touched on the type of project being an EOR

i njection project. W are |looking to inject into

one of these six wells. Qur primry candi date at

the monent is the Patton MDP1 18 Federal 5H, HAPI

nunber 30-015-44272.

And the remaining five wells are alternate
wells that could be selected. Tal king about the
target injection zone, we are targeting injecting
into the second Bone Spring Sand interval. All of
these wells are drilled and conmpleted in the second
Bone Spring Sand interval. And the associate intra
vertical depths of their producing -- can be found
I njection well data sheets.

Excuse me. |I'mtrying to skip through this
and get the highlights. The maxi mal all owabl e
surface pressure for injection for produced gas for
this project is proposed to be 4,590 OPSI. Wth a

proposed average daily injection rate to be anywhere

between 1.5 mlIlion standard cubic feet of gas
projected per day up to 3 mllion standard cubic
feet of gas injected per day. | think that is all

for this page.
MR. RANKIN: Thank you. Do you want to

touch on the timng -- discuss on the nature of the
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project area and the interest within this proposed
proj ect area?

A.  Yes. Looking at the project area map here
on Page 14 of 92. Could you zoom out just a touch,
pl ease. Yes. Thank you. So fromthe project area
map we're | ooking at a couple of different things.
The first of which is the purple outline which is
t he project area outline conposed of the horizontal
spacing unit of each of the six proposed wells.
We're al so highlighting here in yell ow the Oxy
| easehold in this project area and offsets of the
project area. W're also showing the red well board
trajectories of each of the candidate wells. And
we're also showing in blue the half mle AOR buffer.
One thing to note about this project and these
wells, all of these wells are a hundred percent Oxy
working interest. They are also all |ocated on
federal |lease. And they are all only respectably
| ocated on one federal |ease for each well.

And | believe that is all ny notes for that
slide. Slide 15 here. Our candidate |ist and
requested relief. Again, it was referred to
earlier, but our primary candi date for this project
Is Patton 185H. And as noted in the comments here,

this is currently associated with a closed | oop gas
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capture injection order, as well as three other
wells on this list for our conposed project, our
cl osed | oop gas capture wells. 1'll speak to that
in a bit.

The requested relief summarized here is as
follows. We're |ooking to conduct pilot project
over a five-year period. There are the six proposed
wells. We're looking to receive the authority to
si mul taneously inject the produced hydrocarbon gas
whi | e sinmul taneously producing oil and gas fromthe
well. As stated previously, the maxi num all owabl e
surface pressure for injecting produced hydrocarbon
gas is 4,590PSI in this project.

And, a note regarding the nmechani cal
integrity test or MTs for this project, the packer
for the MT will be set below the top of the Bone
Spring formation at approximtely 8100 feet TBD.
And the post pilot MT will be ran after injection
ends. We are approximating that injection will be
for about 48 nonths. That's our best guess at this
time, but it could be shorter or longer. That is
all for this slide.

Q So the next three slides, M. Janacek, are
the as drilled Cl02s slides 18 through 23. |Is that

correct of each of the proposed candi date well s?
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A. That's correct.

Q And then, so we'll skip over those. The
next slide, | think that m ght be worth touching on
i's an explanation for how the pilot project wl
work and you'll be able to sinultaneously inject and
-- do you want to just it up on some highlights
here?

A.  Yes. Sonme highlights here are, we're
focusing on the down hol e aspects of this project
where we're zoomng in on a portion of the
hori zontal well as noted with the circled section A
This injection and production assenbly is going to
be installed in 1,000 feet of the existing
5,000 feet of the producing lateral for this proof
of concept pilot. And what we have here is a
sinplified diagram of what will be happening with
I njection going into the well and production com ng
out of the hole sinultaneously.

So wal ki ng through this diagram we have in

red are perforation clusters, which will be injected
into. So our injecting gas will go into these perf
clusters, and then it will enter the reservoir and

sweep the reservoir perf space between the injection
and production perf clusters. And then we will see,

finally, production com ng out of the producing perf
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clusters flow up the tubulars of our well to surface
and it will be produced. So this is a sinplified
overview of a zooned in injection sequence within

t he horizontal wall board.

Q. Qui ckly, M. Janacek, the gas that wll be
used for this injection for our purposes wll be
source gas from under an existing comm ngling
approval; is that correct?

A. That's correct.

Q And this slide here slide 25 of 92 shows
whi ch order, that comm ngling order that is
aut hori zed under?

A. That's correct.

Q And then the follow ng pages slides 26
t hrough 28 are in each of the wells that contribute
source gas under that existing comm ngling approval ?

A. That's correct.

Q And each of the six wells that are proposed
as candidate wells in this project, they're also
underneath this existing comm ngling approval,
correct?

A. That's correct.

Q Now, | want to nove to the next slide here,
which is a denonstration of how Oxy is nodell ed.

The expected EOR benefits. WIIl you just confirm
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for me, M. Janacek, that Oxy had nodelled this and
if the pilot project works as expected, Oxy expects
to see a positive response within the second Bone
Spring, which is the target here?

A. That's correct. W do.

Q Okay. Next slide here, | want you to just
touch on this so it's clear. You nentioned that
this is a BLM | ease 100 percent federal acreage, 100
percent working interest Oxy. Just explain for us
for the record how it is that Oxy is going to
account has discussed with the BLM and will get BLM
approval for this, but how Oxy is going to be
accounting for the federal royalties here?

A. Yes. So Oxy nmet with BLM on October 30th,
2024 to provide an overview of the project and
di scuss proposed gas accounting nethodol ogy. And
since this project is going to be injecting produced
gas, which will be simlar to the normally produced
gas we wanted to have a way to address this. So Oxy
proposed the BLM royalty free use of the injected
hydr ocar bon gas where 100 percent of the injected
gas volunmes will be deducted fromthe produced gas
vol umes before calculating royalty paynent.

The BLM officers verbally approved the

proposal during the meeting. And BLM wi Il provide
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written approval after a royalty-free sundry is
subm tted by Oxy.

Q Now, you nentioned in your introductory
comments, M. Janacek, that some of these proposed
candi date wells are existing within a existing close
wi th guest capture project. Can you explain briefly
referring to slide 31 what Oxy intends to do or how
Oxy intends to manage any of those well if they are
identified as a injection well for this pilot
pr oj ect ?

A. Yes. So four of our proposed candi date
wells are associated with a CLGC storage injection
order. This is with case -- associated with case
22152. An injection order R-22208. And on the
slide the four wells were l[isted. One note is that
the primary candi date here is noted incorrectly.

Qur primary candidate is the Patton 185H.  What Oxy
I's proposing the NMOCD do in this instance to avoid
any overlap and injection orders is after Oxy has
sel ected our final candidate, an injection
commences, Oxy proposes NMOCD anmend t he order
R-22208. What the selected | WF candi date wel |
renoved.

Q Followi ng, M. Janacek, you've conducted an

areal review pursuant to the division's regul ations
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to confirmall the off-setting operators and wells
within the half mle area?

A. That's correct, yes.

Q And this first slide here two-mle map
show ng the mneral ownership within the two mles
of the proposed project area?

A.  Yes.

Q And the following is the area of the view
i dentifying each of the well bores that partially
penetrate or penetrate within a half mle of any one
of the six proposed candi date injectors?

A. Yes.

Q And you've identified by a number a
referenced for each of the wells and in red the ones
that the candidate wells; correct?

A.  Right.

Q And then the foll owi ng pages are the
t abul ati on of well data for each of the wells
identified of that area of the view map show ng the
wel |l construction -- current well construction for
each of those wells?

A.  Yes.

Q And you've identified in red the wells that
are the candidate wells; correct?

A. Correct.
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Q And you've also identified under the
comment colum the wells that are currently subject
to the close | oop guest captured case that you
referenced?

A. Correct.

Q And identified on this tabulation also the
wells that are tenmporary abandonnent status have
been permanently abandoned as wel | ?

A. Yes.

Q And the follow ng pages fromslides 38 to
44 are the well board diagranms for each of those
wells that penetrate THE proposed injection interval
t hat have been PA'd or TA' d?

A.  Yes.

Q Have you identified any well construction
problenms or risk of communication through those
wel | bores to any off setting zones?

A.  No, | have not.

Q So in your opinion, each of these wells are

properly plugged and abandoned or tenporarily

abandoned?
A. Yes.
Q Following, M. Janacek, is a -- starting at

slide 46 are the well bore schematics for each of

t he proposed injection wells; is that correct?
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A. Correct.

Q We don't have a whole |lot of tine here,
but, basically, M. Janacek, these denonstrate how
Oxy proposes to construct these well bores for
pur poses of injection; is that right?

A. That's correct. For purposes of injection

and si mul taneously.

Q Is it your opinion that approval of this
application will prevent waste and protect --
ri ghts?

A.  Yes.

Q And if the pilot project is -- works as
expected, do you believe it will increase production

substantially nore resulting in substantially nore
hydr ocar bons within the project area then would
ot herwi se be produced within the second Bone Spring?
A.  Yes, | do.
Q Okay. And then, M. Janacek, were slides 1
t hrough 57, are they prepared by you under your
direction and supervision?
A.  Yes.
MR. RANKIN: Okay. No further questions.
And | can nove on to my next witness.
HEARI NG EXAM NER: Okay.
MR. RANKIN: Next witness is going to be
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M. Seoane. M. Seoane, are you there? Can you
hear me?
MR. SEOANE: Yes.

Q You are the conpletions engi neer who
oversaw t he devel opment of this project for the
conpl etion side, correct?

A. Yes, that's correct.

Q Okay. So I'mgoing to work with you just
to kind of go through at a high level, and you can
| et me know say address the issues that you think
are -- let me get to your slides real quick.

A.  Yep.

Q Real quick, just a high Ievel, M. Seoane,
can you explain on slide 58 how Oxy determ ned the
maxi mum servi ce injection pressure?

A. Yes. W determned the max surface
I njection pressure utilizing the -- gradients. The
first gradient there is the OCD gradient of 0.2 PSI
per foot. And then utilizing the fresh water
gradient of 0.433. And then we utilized the TPD of
t he packer. So adding the two gradients OCD, the
fresh water tinmes the true vertical depth of the

packer gave us the bottom whole pressure. W

utilize this bottom hole pressure to be, actually,
utilizing the prosper nodel, which prosper is an
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I ndustry standard software pressures, which you can
make cal cul ations in terns of pressures on surface.

What woul d be the max pressure that we're
going to be seeing injecting gas. So, the rights,
basically, with prosper we're able to calculate the
max pressure that Stephen pointed out around 4590
PSI woul d be our max surface pressure. The

I njection rates that we're thinking or actually

proposing on this project is around 1.5 mllion
standard cubic feet a day to 3 mllion. And that
will be dictated by the injection assenbly itself.

Q. Next slide here, M. Seoane, just at a high
| evel , explain how well bore be constructed during
for injection and what conmponents would be in place.

A. Yes. So we have one through four
conponents. The first one -- basically, we have al
t hese different conponents to mtigate any potenti al
risk with mechanical integrity. So the first one
we're going to be running -- and I'lIl talk a little
bit about that on ny next slide on the magnetic
|l og-in tool. W' re going to run a magnetic
| npedence to -- on a yearly basis to understand what
Is the, actually, the thickness of the casing
itself. The good thing about this tool can read up

to five different casings in a concentered way. And
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I f necessary when we pull the equipnment out, we can

run an inspection |log or caliper inspection |og as

wel | .

And then number two would be our nechani cal
integrity test. Once we pull the equi pnent out of
the well, we can set a plug in the well and then do

a hydro test of the well to the pressures needed for
the project. After we're done, after 48 nonths, we
can sting out, actually, the tubing, and then retest
the well at pressures that are needed in terns for
regul atory purposes.

And then on nunber three, we would |like to
prevent any corrosion on the casing itself because
we're going to be injecting gas between tubing and
casing. And we have a dehydration unit, which I"]|
strip out the water of the gas, which will prevent
corrosion on the casing.

And then | ast, but not |east, is nunber
four the SCADA system basically, is to prevent any
potential if there's any pressure spikes we'll have
safety shutdown val ves. We can neasure injection
rates as well. The injection pressure. And then we
can, actually, nonitor the bradenhead pressures of
this well. Basically, we can neasure all the

di fferent pressures on different casings. And the
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SCADA systemwi || give us alert for that. There's
anot her page further down that has the whol e exhibit
in terms of how the whole plan for the SCADA system

Wth that, we'll go to the next one, which
Is the EM1log. As | pointed before, we can run
t hese | ogs through tubing, through production
tubing. They can neasure -- the good thing about
t hese | ogs, they can neasure, actually, the 1D OD up
to five different strings in a concentric way. The
tool nmeasures 1 in 16th, so we can, actually, get it
in through the tubing. If we conpare that to a
caliper log, 40-armcaliper log, it only reads the
| D of your tubing or casing that you're doing the
reads.

As | said, the EMwill do both internal
| D/ OD. And why that is inmportant for the project
because we're going to be calculating, actually, the
max pressure that the casing can see. And we can
see as well intinme if there's any changes on the
t hi ckness of the casing. Wth that, the pressure
capill ati on based on the EM | o0og, we're going to be
using Barlow s equation, which is part of API 53C or
5C3. Sorry.

Wth that we can cal cul ate the max bust

pressure and as you can see the Barlow s equati on,
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there's OD and ID that it's been taken in
consi deration to calculate that max pressures for
t he project.

Q Can you explain, real quick, for the record
what ID is and OD?

A.  Yes. It's internal diameter of the pipe
and external dianeter of the pipe.

Q Anything more on this slide, M. Seoane?

A. No. W can go to the next one.

Q Just at a high level explain how Oxy w l
run these M Ts?

A. Yeah. So -- well, as | nmentioned before
we're going to be pulling the producti on equi pnent
out. We're going to set a plug to the bottom of the
well. We're going to be pressure testing. And then
that's going to be the first MT. Then we're going
to be installing injection assenbly after that. And
then after we've -- after the 48 nmonths or prior to
48 months or if we see anything fromthe EMI or
el ectromagnetic | ogs, we can, actually, sting out,
pul |l out. W have a disconnect sub, which is there
on the graph. Pull out, basically, the tubing, set
the plug towards the end of the well, and hydro test
back again, or pressure test the casing at that

poi nt .
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Once we do that, we can sting back in with

t he production tubing, and then we can return the
wel | back to normal production. One thing we have
to think about is once we do that, once we pull all
t he equi pnent out of the way, we're going to be
pulling as well lines, fiber lines and electric
lines. And that will disconnect, basically, the
bottom section in terms of data gathering. So
that's something to have in to consideration through
the project. Okay. W can go to the next ones.

Q  So next ones, M. Seoane, just at a high
| evel , the next two slides are gas sanples. The
first one is of gas produced fromthis zone; is that
correct?

A. Yes, that is correct. One of the sanples
I's injective gas, and the other one is produced gas.
Anot her thing the inportant part is that we don't
see any H2S on the gas portion of it.

Q Okay. Both the producing gas and the
I njection gas are very simlar in quality; correct?

A. Correct.

Q And neither has hydrogen sulfite; correct?

A. Yes, correct.

Q The next slide here, | think, is an

overvi ew of the SCADA system Again, at a high
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| evel , explain how Oxy intends to continuously
nonitor the injection operations?

A. Yeah. So sonmething that you're going to be
alittle bit different from other projects, if you
can see the square magenta of color we're going to
be adding a spool in terns of the well head, itself,
and can you see there's two different cables com ng
out of the spool. One of themis going to be an
el ectrical cable where we're going to be getting
pressures and tenperatures fromthe horizontal
section. And the green cable is going to be your
fiberoptics cable. As well on those cables we're
going to have two internal valves that they're good
to 10, 000 pounds just in case there's any event of
over pressure so we can actually control the well.

Wth that said, I'Il walk you through the
hi gh pressure conpressor. Fromthe high pressure
conpressor we're going to go through the injection
skid. W're going to have a flow nmeter there,
two-inch flow neter. We're going to netering the
flow, and then totalizing the amunt of gas as
descri bed by Stephen. Then we're going to have a
two-inch fisher flow valve, which we can control the
amount of gas going in to be injected. And then in

terms of the well head, itself, as you can see we
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have subsurface safety shutdown valves. And then we
are going to have pressure transfusers and pressure
gaugi ng. So the pressure gauges are for the field
personnel. They can see the pressures from a
surface perspective. And then the pressure

transl ucers, we're going to have a SCADA systemt hat
we can see on a five-mnute or a m nute base, the
pressure on these wells to nonitor. And that's
pretty much it froma big picture perspective --

Q | was going to say the next set of slides |
don't think we need to go into them but 65 through
67 are a description of your operational and SCADA
pl an; correct?

A. Yes, that is correct.

Q So I'mgoing to skip down because | think
you al so provided an additional exhibit and the
Exhibit B. And that is an overview of the assenbly
installation procedure. |In the next three m nutes
or so, M. Seoane, can you please just give an
overview of how Oxy is going to be installing this
setup in one of the injection wells?

A. Yes. So, as | explained before step number
one, we're going to be running magnetic -- the EM
| og or the magnetic | og to understand that

with Barl ow s equation that, basically, these --
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will be able to withstand the at |east a

4600 pounds. Then once that is checked and
conplete, we're going to nmove in a pulling unit. At
t hat point we're going to clean out up to

12,000 feet, not to the TD of the well, only a

t housand feet of the section that we're going to be
installing the equi pnent.

After that, on step nunmber four, once we do
that we're going to pull out and then run | ogs.
We're going to be running a CVL and gyro under
tractor up to 12,000 feet. Then after that we're
going to be returning the well to production and
make an engi neering decision if we want to proceed
with the production equi pnent on this well or the
setup packers that Adam showed you before in one of
the sections there with Stephen.

Then, if everything checks good, then we're
going to be running, actually, back, again, the
wor kover rate, which is the WR.  And then pulling
unit, and then we're going to be running a bit and
scraper 12,000 feet making sure everything is clean
before we run, actually, a packer in the well and do
the hydro test on the well, itself.

Now, we satisfied the mechanical integrity

test. And then at that point we're going to be
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running with the conpletion tools, packers into the

well; set everything up. And then we'll rake down,
we'll nove the rake out of the way and then turn
based -- the well to production will comrence,

actually, high pressure gas. And then we'll
commence surveillance and the SCADA systemw || be
on at that point.

Q  Thank you, M. Seoane, anything further
other this exhibit or anything else that |I didn't
elicit fromyou that you want to say with respect to
your area of this application?

A. No. All good. Thank you, Adam

Q Good. Wth that, M. Seoane, did you
prepare slides 58 through and 66 and 79 that we just
revi ewed?

A. Yes. Wth the help of Stephen.

MR. RANKIN: Thank you, very nmuch. No
further questions of this witness, M. Exam ner, so
we'll nmove on to our | ast witness, Ms. Noonan, who
I's our petrol eum geol ogi st.

Ms. Noonan, you've been previously
gual ified now as an expert in petroleum geol ogy.

Can you hear ne okay?
A. Yes. Can you hear me?

Q Geat. Wth that, | think you also have
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prepared a series of slides overview providing an
overvi ew of your geol ogic assessnent of the area

bei ng suitable for this injection project, correct?

A. Yes.
Q. Wth that, I will turn it over to you. |
think there's slides starting at 81. |If you woul d,

Ms. Noonan, just please give an overview of your
anal ysis of your geology and the acreage?

A. Thank you. This slide shows the geol ogic
statement for the -- injection project. The
injection wells, candidate wells are listed in the
table with the primary candi date started 5H W see
t hose wells on the right-hand side shown on the map
and in the table the primary candidate 5H is
outlined in orange and the back-up candi dates are
single black |ines.

The map al so shows the Patton 17 and 18
section outlines or the Sand Dunes acreage that Oxy
operates. The primary candi date is the Patton NDP1
18 Federal 5H with the other backups listed in case
of mechanical integrity issues. |'ve done a
geol ogic review on this area and will coment on the
vertical section of rock as well as | ateral
succession to in part confinenment upon the gas that

will be injected into this project.
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So to talk about the vertical confinenment,
the wells are | anded in the second Bone Spring
Sandst one Formation, which is the sub-formation of
t he Bone Spring. The top of the Bone Spring
formation is at 8132 neasured depth. Between the
I njection zone and the top of the Bone Spring
there's over 1200 feet of tight carbonated nudstones
and shales acting as perneability barriers to any
upward m gration of injected gas. Above that, there
i's the Del aware Mountain Group which consists of
bone at connat e-water bearing sands with m nor
| i mest one and shale intervals.

Not necessarily concerned as a confining
zone. That is 3800 feet thick, but above the
Del aware Mountain Goup is the Castile Formation,
which is very, very low pernmeability anhydrite,
gypsum and calcite. That's 1500-foot thick barrier
to any upward m gration nmovenent of fluids. Above
that is the Salado with is 1,000 thousand feet thick
salt. And then above that is the Rustler Formation.
The Rustler is also a very tight and anhydrite | ayer
and access another -- as another thousand f oot
barrier of pernmeability barrier for any injected
gas. Above the Rustler is a perched fresh water

aqui fer, which is the | owest |evel known of fresh
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aqui fer in the area.

Because of the thickness of multiple and
per mneabl e rock | ayers, above the injection zone and
second Bone Spring Sandstone, | do not think there's
a possible path for mgration upward into any fresh
wat er aquifers where they exist. So, that's the
vertical succession of rock. Laterally, |I do not
think that the injection will mgrate laterally
outside of the area of interest. The injection wll
be contained by the vertical volune that's been
previously depleted by the producing wells. The
tight | ow perneability reservoir will be the -- and
t he production fromthe adjacent wells will be the
primary constraints on conformants laterally of the
I njection into the project area.

We expect to contain the injected gas
| aterally. Now there are deep
Pennsyl vani an- Devoni an faults in the area, but
seism c data showed that these faults do not extent
into the confining zone in the Ochoan which is the
Rustler Castile -- of tight sands of tight salts
that | nmentioned. So there's no fault between the
confining zones and the injection zone. The offset
of the faults is constrained at the top of the Third

Bone Spring Linmestone, which exist below the second
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Bone Spring Sandstone, so there's no faulting
bet ween the injection zone and any of the confining
zones.

After review there's one active nonitoring
well within a two-mle radius of the primary Patton
wel | candi date, but no ground water wells were
found. The next slide support all these statenents.
We can see the area type | og shine gamarian
resistivity, which outlines this formations | was
mentioning, the vertical succession of rock you can
see in yellow. The second Bone Springs Sand
formation that we're injecting into for the primary
candi date is overlaying by 2100 feet tight nudstone
and shales fromthe Bone Spring. Above that is the
Del aware Mountain G oup. And then above that is
anot her confining zone B Rustler Salado Castile salt
anhydrate section. That's 3,000 feet thick. And
t he only aquifer of concern would be above the
Rustler. So we have nmultiple intervals of tiny rock
that are between the injection zone and any dri nking
wat er .

Next slide please. This is a cross-section
to show the lateral continuity of those confining
zones that | nmentioned. On the left you can see an

area map of the Sand Dunes acreage operated by Oxy.
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The red outline is the Patton 18 and 17 sections.
And then we can al so see the primary and candi date
wells on the map as well as the | ocation of the
cross-section. The cross-section shows the
continuity of both that 3,000-foot thick confining
zone and the Ochoan Rustler Salado cut steel as well
as the continuity of the 2100-foot thick type -- and
shales in the Bone Spring. So over Patton 18 and 17
we expect lateral continuity of these confining
zones.

Next slide, please. This slide shows the
structure interpretation for the Sand Dunes and
Patton area. On the left we can see the Devoni an
fault traces that | nmentioned earlier on. These
Devoni an faults as | said do not extend to the
I njection zone, but are denoted on this map, so
their | ocation can be noted. The m ddle and right
maps are the top second Bone Spring Sand structure
maps and top Bone Spring structure maps as well as
the red outline of Patton 17 and 18 section |ines.
You can also see the primary and back up candi date
| ocations as well as any wells in white circle that
are data used to create the structure maps.

Overall we have a gently ease for dipping

structure in the second Bone Sand in and the Bone
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Spring. That's all for this slide. Active
groundwater wells. This is a map show ng any
shall ow wells within a one mle radius around the
Patton area. One of the -- only one well was found
this is active, but |listed as nonitoring. So we do
not believe there are any groundwater wells wthin
that area of the project. That concludes ny slides.
Thank you.

Q Wth time to spare. Anything further,
Ms. Noonan, that you didn't address before we open
up the panel to questions by the division?

A. Not at this time. Thank you.

MR. RANKIN: Thank you. M. Exam ner, at
this time that conpletes our initial presentation of
t he application here for this pod project and we
make each of these wi tnesses avail able for questions
by the division exam ners.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Thank you. | believe
that M. MIlion Gabber M chael will go first and
then we will follow with the second technical
exam ner.

TECHNI CAL EXAM NER: Thank you, M. Hearing
Examner. | will proceed. | think it's going to be
you addressed to the panel, but may | direct your

attention to Page 29. Thank you so much. My
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gquestion is: W could see the benefit of this
proposed project in terns of production uplifting.
My question is: How would you conpare this pil ot
project to traditional enhancenent nethods, |ike
huff and puff or having a sole injector and then a
series of producer wells? What's the advantage of
this rather unique method conpared to those
traditi onal enhancenment makers?

MR. JANACEK: Yes, | believe I'll take that
one, initially, M. Exam ner. \When we |ook at this
project conpared to other types of EOR injection

projects, this one is unique in the sense that it's

utilizing one well bore instead of traditionally
two. In a traditional water flood or CO2 injection
pilot -- or excuse me. Projects you will have a

dedi cated producing well and dedicated injection
well. In this instance, since we have one well, but
we have a lateral with rmultiple producing
perforation steps, we're able to treat it as if
those different perf clusters are wells.

So, in essence we're able to utilize one
wel |l bore here for injection and production at the
sanme time instead of a traditional set up where you
have a production an injection and two

dedi cated well. Does that answer your question?
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Q So you think this is more suited to
hori zontal wells, maybe?

A. Yes. This is nore of an application for
hori zontal wells and unconventional place.

Q Thank you. All right. ['lIl proceed to the
next question. |If | my direct your attention to
page nunber 13. You descibed there are six
candi dates for this project and then you're going to
run this EM | ogs, electromagnetic | ogs selected a
well for the project. What are the characteristics
you are hoping to identify with EMIlog in
determ ning the candi date wel | ?

MR. JANACEK: | will let Ed take this one.

MR. SEOANE: So, good afternoon. Wth the
EMlog that we're |looking at, if we can go back to
the, | think it's the slide where we have the
equation, the Barlow s equation. So with this |og
we're going to be nmeasuring around half a foot to a
foot through the whole section of the well. And
what we're |looking at is that the casing is good at
| east 20 percent of the pressure that we're going to
be injecting on this well.

So, if we're | ooking at 4600, at |east we
want to make sure that the well, itself, through top

to bottomactually is over 5800 based on

Page 161

Veritext Lega Solutions
Caendar-nm@veritext.com 505-243-5691 WWWw.veritext.com



© 00 N oo o b~ W N P

N R N N R R N N =
o A W N P O © 0O N O 0o &~ W N +—» O

that Barlow s equation. If it neets that criteria,
then the well is a candidate for the pilot.

Q Is that for the burst pressure?

A. Yes, correct.

Q Okay. Okay. I1'll proceed to the next
question. On Page 58, you proposed a maxi num
surface injection pressure of 4590 PSI and then the
maxi mum i njection rate, you could range from1.5 to
3 mllion. How did you determ ne those figures?
And then the other question | have is: What are
your inputs into the prosper nodel in determ ning
t his maxi num pressure? And have you consi dered the
friction in this regard or the prosper nodel
automatically takes it into consideration?

MR. SEOANE: Yes. So, as you can see there
in the slide, we took, basically, the fluid
conmposition, that whole equipnment, the bottom hole
pressure. And the other thing is going to be
dictating the right is the injection assenbly,
itself. So there's a little bit of uncertainty. In
terms it mght be between 1.5 to 3 mllion, but we
want to cap basically the max injection rate of
4590. And that's due to be able to be m scible, be
in the m scible phase to be able to push the oi

fromthe injection side to the production side.
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Q So, did you take into consideration
friction? Did you conpensate for friction?

A.  Yes.

Q Do you have an idea how nmuch what that
pressure is, top of your head or no?

A. So -- | think fromthe bottom hole -- can
you specify. | think what you're pointed out is the
bottom hol e assenbl y?

Q Yes. Especially the 1,000 the horizontal
that's where the friction is dom nant.

A. Yeah. So we want to keep it no nore than
2,000 pounds. And that's why we have, actually,
pressure gauges at the bottomof this well.
Actually, we don't want to exceed a differential of
3,000 pounds as well because there's sone
limtations on the equipment, itself. So, one of
the things that we're going to have in this well is
bott om hol e pressure upon real tinme. And we don't
want to go over 3,000 pounds differently.

Q Sure. Sure. This question also goes with
this one. Since our existing production wells. | s
there any fracture gradient available from your
previous either oxidization or fracking? Do you
have that value there fromthe previous data?

A. Yes. And | think so is close to surface
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pressure of 4800 pounds. So we want to maintain
| ess than 4800 pounds because if we go over that, we
don't want to fracture the well.

Q So you did take into consideration your
fracture gradient in determning this pressure?

A. Yes, correct.

Q Ckay. Thank you. All right. 1'll proceed
to the next question. If | may direct your
attention to page nunber 34. It's this one. Has

Oxy conducted a reservoir sinulation nodel to
determ ne expungent of the injected gas in the
future?

MR. JANACEK: Not that |'m aware of.

Q Do you think that would be necessary,
t hough?

A. | think that is sonmething that we could
di scuss and potentially provide.

Q Especially, you know, injecting at that
rate, yeah. All right. Thank you. 1'Il proceed to
t he next question. Can you kind of touch upon this
one, but on Page 30. Adam if you could go to
Page 30. That's fine. Yeah. You stated that Oxy
anticipating BLM approval. Has Oxy obtained the
approval yet? And then, when are you hopi ng that

you going to get that approval ?
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MR. JANACEK: Yes. So we've already
recei ved verbal approval fromthe BLM when we net
with themin October of 2024. And then we wl|
receive written approval after we file the sundry.

Q Do you have any tineline for that one? Are
you going to submt the sundry?

A. Yes. We will submt the sundry after the
order has been issued, and we have selected in | W/
candi date wel |l .

Q Okay. All right. I think I'"ll proceed to
t he next question. If | can direct your attention
to page nunber 46. Thank you. Would you, please,
descri be the function of the fiberoptic |ine denoted
that is the lilac line, | guess, color.

MR. SEOANE: Yes.

Q And if you could do that. And then, while
you're there | just want to confirm

MR. SEOANE: Yes.

Q Just go ahead with this one.

MR. SEOANE: Yeah, so we're going to have
two lines. One of themis going to be the
fiberoptic and, actually, the dotted line if you go
to the bottom section where the different packers
are, actually that line should be continuing through

the well up to 12,000 feet.
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Q It expands all the way?

A. It expands all the way, exactly. So we're
going to be neasuring, basically, tenperature with
the fiberoptics. And we're going to nmeasuring
acoustic and with the tenperature what we would |ike
to understand is how the gas and production is
nmovi ng through the horizontal section. And then
with the acoustic portion of it of the fiber we're
goi ng to be understandi ng potential magnitude of gas
or production that is comng from each section or
contributions.

So we're going to be doing sone estinmates
on that piece. And then the green line is going to
be your electric line for the -- as | pointed before
we're going to have gauges. Pressure gauge and a
tenmperature gauge as well. W' re going to have two
gauges on each section. And we're going to be
recordi ng, basically, data on each portion of the
well as well.

Q Great. Thank you. So with this the
acoustic and tenperature also m ght have anot her
benefit to giving you any formation behind the
casi ng, maybe |like as mgrating sort of the cenent
or sonet hing?

A. Correct.
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Q Okay. Excellent. The other question that
goes with this one is the pressure rating of the
wel | head 10,000 K? | just want to confirnP

A. Yeah, it's going to be 10K

Q Al right. The next question is, if | may
direct your attention to page nunmber 59. This
di scussion is concerned on the dehy unit. And then
you stated that the well serve as a corrosion
prevention because you're going to strip the water.
In addition to the water are you planning to add any
anticorrosion additives inhibitors or anything or
are you just going to strip the water?

A. Just only strip the water.

Q Stripping the water. Promse, this is the
| ast question for me. If | may direct your
attention to Page 59. It's going to be the sane.

So you propose that you're going to conme back to two
MTs, initially, and then what is it after 48 nonths
given that you're |osing your primary -- when you're
usi ng casing tubing -- you'll be using a casing
mechani cal barrier, do you think probably increasing
the MT frequency woul d be beneficial?

A.  Yeah, so issue with doing before the
48 mont hs, one thing that we're going to have an

issue is with the fiberoptics and the electric |ine.
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If we pull the equipnment out and sting out, we're
going to |l ose that capability so we're not going to
be able to nmeasure what is happening through the
hori zontal section. And that's what we're proposing
to do the EM 1l og on a yearly bases or with the SCADA
system Sonmething that is abnormal we'll do an EM
| og earlier, but if we see sonething that is outside
of extraordinary, we're still going to be pulling
t he equi pnment out. So we can do that before the
48 months if it's necessary.

Q So the EM Il og and the acoustic conpressure

data would al so give you good information about the

wel | --

A. Correct. And the fiber will be on
the vertical section as well, correct.

Q That's great. Well, | conclude ny
guestion. Now I'll pass it to M. Tony Harrison.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: M. Harrison, would you
turn on your canera, please. M. Harrison, please
proceed.

MR. HARRIS: M first question is related
to the proposed conpl etion conponents and the
I nstallation procedure. So, if we can go to slide
46, please. So |I'mlooking for an overview on how

this conpletion conponents are actually installed in
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the weld. | guess nmy first question is: Wuld this
entire assenbly be rung as a one trip systenf
MR. SEOANE: Yes. It would be a single
trip system Correct.
Q So you, basically, pick up your isolation

packers for the horizontal section. All of your

associ ated cables and fi beroptics will be banded to
the pipe. And then your upper packer, | guess your
production packer would be -- would also be -- so

everything is run in a single trip?

A. Correct. And it's going to be hydraulic
packer. It's not going to be a nechanical one,
because we won't be able to rotate. So it has to be
hydraulic and it would just be a one single trip
system

Q So, in ternms of the upper packer there's
penetrations through that packer both for your gauge
cabl es?

A. Yeah. Gauge --

Q And fiberoptics. And also it would all ow
gas to be injected through the packer; is that
correct?

A. Yes, that is correct. It's called a
fit-through packer.

Q Okay. So, is that a unit directional flow
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t hrough that packer or is there a check valve in
there or can gas also flow back up through the
packer ?

A. Potentially can flow back.

Q So you need to maintain positive pressure,
ot herwi se you with have back flow across that
packer ?

A.  Yes.

Q Okay. So, you say that you're
hydraulically set. Once the setting sequence for
that, do you drop a ball and |Iand on a seat do you
punp it down? How is that activated?

A. Yeah, it would be dropping a ball.

Q OCkay. So then, the three the packers in
t he horizontal section and the packer in the
vertical section, all of those will be set
si mul t aneousl y?

A. No. So the beauty about the systemis the
packers on the horizontal section it is swellable
systens.

Q Okay. So, what nmedian do they need for
swelling? Do they need water? Do they need oil
medi an? How does it work?

A. Water and salinity.

Q Okay. So you'll, basically, have -- how do
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you ensure that water stays in the zone and doesn't
| eak often and bursts while you're running --

A. Yeah, so as you pointed out that's one of
the things we're working on in terns of the fluid
conposition, making sure that we have the density
enough to be able to maintain the water and solidity
there. So there's different products out there that
we're | ooking at at this point to maintain that
density.

Q Okay. | know you nentioned that you' d been
running a cl eanup assenbly before you run the
packers. Since you're running through the existing
perforations here, | nmean there's going to be burrs,
sonme sharp edges that could danmage the elast -- on
t hose packers. Do you plan to include a string m /||
or, like, a tubing broach to renove those burrs and
sharp edges to mtigate any damage to your packers
or what's your plan?

A. Yes, that is correct. So, what we woul d
|li ke to do is to have alnost a 98 percent drift.

And then the packers, itself, are going to be
smal l er than that 98 percent drift to make sure that
we don't dammge the packers.

Q Okay. You nentioned sting -- so, is this

the -- do you have a receptacle above that
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packer or --

A.  Yes.

Q So that -- is run in the pin position while
you're running it whole?

A. Correct.

Q And then, do you share that pin |ater or do
you just leave it as is?

A. No. W'Il leave it there. W can share it
If it's necessary. And we're working to you the
capillations of sharing because we have to
i ncorporate as well the cables, right?

Q Uh-huh. So | guess there's a risk that if
you did share the pin you could disconnect and | ose
all communication; is that fair to say?

A. Correct. Yes, that's fair to say.

Q Have you nodel | ed whet her or not the
tenmperature change during injection and production
whet her or not that would be creating enough forces
to share pin?

A. Not at this point. W're working through
t hat .

Q Okay. | guess going back if we can focus
still on the sane slide, focusing on the packers,
| sol ati on packer between the perforations. So once

t hose packers swell, you nentioned that the --
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t here's obviously going to be penetrations through
your packers through your fiberoptics and for your
gauge cabl e because you've got a gauge between each
packer and you've got fiberoptic cable extending

t hrough each of the packers; is that correct?

A. Yes, that's correct. But there's going to
be, basically, they're going to be seal ed around
t hose swel | abl e packers for the cabl es.

Q So when you pressure up -- again, you have
to pressure up to set your production packer; is
t hat correct?

A. Yes, that is correct.

Q So you've got a blanking plug. |If you | ook
at the very end of your tubing, you ve got a nipple
profile there. So that nipple is, obviously, run in
pl ace so you can pressure up agai nst that nipple.

So you've got a closed systemthat you're pressuring
up against. So in order to produce your fluids back
t hrough the tubing, how do you get communi cation

t hrough that tubing? |Is there a flooding sleeve or
how i s that acconmplished?

A. Yeah, so we're going to be retrieving,
basically, fromthe blanking plug. And then --
okay. So | just want to make sure you're clear in

terms of how we're going to be producing. Adam can
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you point out the -- so there's two sections. One
I's going to be an injection. And one is going to be
a producing area. So on the producing area, as you
can see the tubing has a hole. W're going to be
producing fromthat hole, actually, up to the
surface section.

Q But if that hole is there, how are you
going to pressure up the -- production packer?

A. So the production packer is going to be, as
| said, in the -- up here if you go to the
di sconnect portion of it, yes. So we're going to be
pressure up -- actually, it's going to be below the
packer. We're going to have the nipple there and
pressure up fromthat point up the well.

Q So you drop a ball to pressure up agai nst
t hat .

A.  Yes.

Q How do you renove that ball -- flow path
for production?

A. Yes. So production will come back, again,
i f you go to the bottom section there where the --
yes. So production will come, actually, through the
perforations up to the tubing up to vertical section
of the well.

Q So then you're relying on the production to
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lift that ball off the seat and recover that
surface; is that correct?

A. Yes. Yes, that is correct.

Q Okay. And you've nodelled that that's
achi evable with anticipated production rates and
you're, | guess, consider stokes |aw how fast that
ball was settled in your fluid verses the velocity
of your fluids inside your five and a half inch
t ubi ng?

A. Yeah. We're in the process of making those
cal cul ati ons.

Q Is there any option to have a dissol vable
bal | ?

A. Yes. There's an option that we're | ooking
at from a dissol vabl e perspective; correct.

Q  \What nmedian would you need for that ball to
di ssolve? Wuld it need to be a brawn or a fluid --

A. Yeah. So it could be brawn, one of the
medias or it could be, yeah, brawn, correct.

Q So | guess at the end of the project, how
woul d this conpletion assenmbly be retrieved?

A. Now, the plan is not to retrieve it is keep
it in place. And that's why if question go back
again, Adam if you can go into the bottom section

of the well where there's a nipple. Actually, we're
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planning to go with coil. W ran calculations in
terms of | ock up calculations and get the nipple out
of the way, and then return the rest of the

hori zontal to production at that point.

Q Okay --

A.  And -- uh-huh.

Q Go ahead.

A. And we have a contingent plan to | eave,
basically, a tailpipe |ong enough that we can get --
if we can't pull that nipple, actually, we go in
with coil TCP perforate the tubing and then we'l
restore production on the well.

Q COkay. So, that nipple is -- it's a regular
X nipple, R nipple, what kind of profile are you

| ooki ng at there?

A. Well, | have the specs. | can send you --
| can get the specs. | don't have it handy at this
poi nt .

Q Well, you would have to -- you'd engage it

overshot or an internal fishing like a GS profile?
A. Yes. GS. It's going to be a GS neck,
correct?
Q So an internal fishing neck?
A.  Yes.

Q And you'll retrieve this with coil?
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A. Uh-huh. That's correct.

Q And you're sinmulation show that there's no
I ssues with reaching that depth? No issues with
| ock up inside the five and a half?

A. Yes. There's no issues with |ockup at this
poi nt .

Q Okay. Wuld it be, potentially, pull it
with tractor, if necessary?

A. No. | don't think it will fit in that two
and 3/8ths tubing. So there's a limtation there
with a tractor and di mensi ons of the pipe.

Q Okay. So, in |looking at your packer,
agai n, horizontal packers in the horizontal section,
t hose penetrations for your fiberoptics and for your
gauge cable, are they going to be banded to your
tubing or do they actually penetrate through the
packer itself? |I'mthinking as they swell, would
t here be any potential issues for themto -- as the
packers swells that could cause a conmuni cati on
| ssues or |l oss of communication?

A. No. That is a fair question. Yes, so
they're going to go through the packer, itself, and
fromother wells we haven't seen any issues on the
expansi on and creating any damage to the cables,

itsel f.
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Q So -- but they do pass through penetration
t hrough the packer?

A. Yes, correct.

Q Okay. And then, so how does your gas get
t hrough those packers and into the desired injection
zone? There nmust be some sort of the unbilical that
al so pass through the packers or how is that
achi eved?

A. Yes. It's through umbilical. And the gas
will go through the umbilical and the gas will go
t hrough the unbilical. So we size the unbili cal
based on the rates that we want to achi eve through
each one. So, it's going to have two unbilicals,
itself. And |like | said, they' re size-based on the
differential pressure based on the previous question
on that we want to make sure we have the sizes
enough to be able to get the injection rates that we
need t hrough the project.

Q Okay. All right. Let me check nmy notes
here.

A. One thing |I can do if you want to I can
send you a program of how we're going to be,
actually, setting the hydraulic packer if you want
it.

Q Okay. Yeah. That would be useful. So if
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we could just focus on the cables that are -- your
red cable for your gas |lift valve. That's an
electric gas lift valve. Could you explain how that
-- the operation of that valve?

A. Yeah. So it's an electric gas lift.
Basically, it's just one surface, one orifice,
itself. And there's going to be a cable where we're
going to be opening or closing, actually, the valve,
itself, to be able to induce gas if we need to do
any gas lift on the well, itself.

Q So, do you anticipate needing gas lift to
kick this off based on the production as well?

A. Correct. That is correct. And the -- face
of the project we m ght need gas lift.

Q Ckay. But you don't have any neans to
control your -- you have mechanismto control how
much gas goes into your gas |lift valve versus how

much goes down and into the perforations; is that

correct?

A. That is correct. So, initially, we're
going to be opening. |It's going to help to upload
the well. And then once we upload to well, we'll

close it electrically back, again, the valve.
Q So you will use it to kick off the well,

initially?
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A. Correct. It's only to kick off, to make
sure that the well is flow ng.

Q So you, basically, got as we can see here
you got three cables going back to surface. |If we
could junmp to slide 64. So | think MIIlion asked
t he question, the pressure rating for your Christmas
tree is 10K; is that correct?

A. Correct.

Q So how about the pressure rating for the
remai ni ng conponents on your well head for annul us.
What's the pressure rating for your well head
conponents associated with the 13/8 surface casing?

A. That is a fair question. | need to get
back with you on that piece.

Q Okay. Likewse for the 9 5/8, what's the
pressure rating on your well head conponents?

A. Can you repeat the question?

Q For your 9 5/8s intermedi ate casing, those
angul are val ves on that spool piece, what's the
pressure rating on those conponents?

A. Those conponents, as | said, I'lIl get those
pressure ratings. | don't have it.

Q Okay. Yeah. Well, that's very inportant
because that going to be -- is going to be

pressurized with 5, 000 PSI or 4,590, whatever your
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proposed injection?

A. The 9 5/8s because --

Q No. Your five and a half inch. MWhat's the
pressure rating on your five and a half inch
production casing val ves?

A. 12,700 pounds. The casing, itself, is
P110.

Q Uh-huh. That's your -- that you're -- the
val ves com ng off your spool piece for nonitor an
annul us pressure. What's the pressure on those
val ves?

A. Yeah. So on those we're going to be -- |
think we're going to go 10, 000 pounds for sure.

Q They're not already installed?

A. Yes, | think so.

Q Okay. We'll need to see all those
paraneters because we want to nmake sure that they're
suitably rated, obviously, that they can w thstand
t he pressures that you plan to have on this annul us
during your injection operations?

A.  Yeah.

Q So, if I -- the next question would be
related to your well control and your barrier
phi | osophy. So, on the very bottom you're show ng

wel | head, you show your additional spool piece that
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you'l | be adding. And then com ng off the side
you'll have an electrical cable and a fiberoptic
cable. Are those dedicated penetrations through
t hat spool piece?

A. Yes. They're dedicated for each one.

Q So your both cables will pass through a
dedi cat ed penetration, and then your footnote down
at the bottom says each connection to the additional
spool has two internal valves with 10K pressure
rating that can close in an event. | assune you
mean, by event you mean a well-controlled event?

A. Yes, correct.

Q So, just to confirm those are dedicated
penetrations and that those cables do not pass at
all through those val ves?

A. Correct. Yeah. They're dedicated, yes.

Q So, the operation of those valves is not

| npeded in any way with cabl es across those val ves?

A.  No.

Q Okay. Very good. | guess ny next question
woul d be for the control line for your gas lift.
Your electric gas lift. That would be comng to

surface also and passing through your tubing hanger;
I's that correct?

A. Yes, | believe so.
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Q So you've got a dedicated penetration
t hrough that tubing hanger so that there's no
obstruction across your master valve or crown val ve?

A. Correct.

Q Okay. Good. Could you -- we'd |like to see
t hat an additional package just el aborate on all
these itens. So we need to confirmthe pressure
rating of the 13 3/8 surface casing, the 9 5/8
wel | head conponents not the casings, but the
wel | head conponents. Those pressure ratings need to
be confirmed. And also the tubing hanger
penetrations.

A.  Yeah. Correct.

Q Okay. So | guess ny next questions would
focus primarily on production and engi neering
aspects. So, you nentioned earlier that this is for
a single existing well bore. So, basically, all
i njection that occurs would be associated with
production for that dedicated well. None of the
offset wells would be affected by this injection; is
that the prem se?

A. Well, there's sone unknowns on that piece.

Q  \What would they be?

A. Yeah. So, the whole premse is not, but

t here's an unknown, you know, we have hydrolic
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fracks going through. And that's why if we go back

agai n, Adam can you go to the -- where we have the
wells, itself. Let ne see if | can find it. | have
it inmy mnd. It's the -- where we're show ng all

t hose spaghetti wells with all the different
candi dates selection. | think so slide 32.

So with that, we took in consideration that
potential risk. And that's why we would like to
have if you see in there nunmber one, they space al
surrounding Oxy wells. So if we have any gas
potentially going into the second Bone Springs due
to the frack to other wells, production m ght go or
gas mght go into Oxy wells around it.

Q So then you could be losing gas, sonme of
your injection gas could be |lost to other wells?

A. There is a potential, yes.

Q  Ckay.

A. And that's part of the pilot. That's why
we want to understand. |Is it gas going into the
ot her wells or not or maintained between the two
fracks that we have between production and
I njection, and how nuch and what is the quantity.
And that's why we're having all this telenmetry on
this well to understand all that piece.

Q Okay. So then I guess, the volume of gas
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that you're injecting, the 1.5 to 3 mllion standard
cubic feet a day, that will not be bal anced by the
off-take fromthe candidate well alone. Some of

t hat gas could benefit other wells in the pool?

A. In the second Bone Springs, correct.

Q So then howis this -- | don't -- howis
this, | guess, configuration beneficial?

A. In terms.

Q In terms of proving that the intra-well
m scibility is successful. |[If you're injecting nore
gas than you're -- if you're overvoiding the

reservoir and injecting nore gas than the equival ent
vol ume -- gas of water being produced -- so how are
you judged success?

A. Yes. Success. Can go to the production
pl ot, please, Adam There you go. So this is what
we're | ooking at, right, and if we're not follow ng,
basically, this production profile we know that some
of the gas plus we have telemetry at the bottom of
these wells and we'll do a mass bal ance. And at
that point, we will know if how effective, actually,
the flood is. And one of the outcomes of this
project is we mght term nate the project before
actually getting into the 48 nont hs.

Q So you would say then that if your

Page 185

Veritext Lega Solutions

Caendar-nm@veritext.com 505-243-5691 WWWw.veritext.com




© 00 N oo o b~ W N P

N R N N R R N N =
o A W N P O © 0O N O 0o &~ W N +—» O

production profile doesn't m mc what you show
here --

A. Expect it. Yeah.

Q That would be considered failure of this

particul ar technol ogy?

A. Correct. But we're |ooking not
specifically -- we have a range as well, right. So
this is the -- we'll call it the P50 of that range.
And we'll ook into that range just to make -- to

see if we're following that range in conparison to
potential future economcs. So, if it's not
follow ng that range, we'll term nate the project
and deem it unsuccessful. We'Ill reset back, again,
re-think back, again, how we want to proceed going
forward on this project. Hopefully it's successful,
but if not we'll keep on working it, how to make at
t hat successful.

Q | guess while we're looking at this, the
red line is your gas rate --

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Excuse nme. Coul d |

i nterrupt you for just a nonent. |1'd like to take a
five-m nute break. Most people here haven't had
l unch and 1'd just like to take a five-m nute break
and maybe we can talk offline and see how nuch

| onger your questions m ght be going.
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MR. HARRI'S: Probably about ten nore
m nutes at nost.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: All right. Let's take a
five-m nute break and we'll cone back on the record
at that tinme. Thank you. W're off the record.

(Recess was taken.)

HEARI NG EXAM NER: We're back on the
record. The time is 1:44. W're going to taking
little lunch break at this tinme because after
speaking with M. Harris and M. -- and | know t hat
you're going to want to ask sone questions to
rehabilitate nost |ikely, your wtnesses dependi ng
on what you've heard during this cross-exam nation,
we're going to take a little lunch break now.

M. Rankin and Ms. Vance, | know that you don't work
here, so you have to travel for lunch and conme back.
What tinme how much lunch time do you need?

| have a call at two, but | think if we
could do 45 m nutes | guess. That m ght be good.

So then at 2:30 we'll conme back on the
record at 2:30. Feel free if you need to bring
sonmething with you and have it here. This is going
on |l onger than we expected, and | don't want you to
be unconfortable. So, there you have it okay.

We're off the record until 2:30. Thank you.
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(Lunch recess was taken.)

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Okay. It is 2:33.
We're back on the record. W have M. Harris our,
technical examner. M. Harris, please proceed.

MR. HARRI'S: Okay. Thank you. Just a
guestion regarding the reservoir. How to you
classify it as a reservoir? Is it an oil reservoir
or a gas reservoir.

MR. JANACEK: Yes, M. Examner, this is
classified as an oil reservoir in the Bone Spring
oi | pool.

Q Thank you. So in terms of your current
reservoir pressure, are you -- with respect to the
bubbl e point, are you above or bel ow the bubble
poi nt ?

MR. JANACEK: Ed, do you want to go ahead
and take that?

MR. SEOANE: Yeah, so we're above,
basi cally, bubble point. Unconventional bubble
point, itself.

Q  Above bubble point, so no free gas within
the reservoir?

A. Sorry. You're breaking gas fromthe
reservoir.

Q So you are bel ow bubbl e point?
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A. Yeah. [I'll rectify the record. Below
bubbl e point. Yes, correct. Yeah.

Q Thank you. So I nean, you refer to this
project intra-well mscibility project. Just the
termmscibility in itself, that inplies that you're
going to be increasing the reservoir pressure to
achieve mscibility; is that correct?

A.  Yeah, that is correct. And that is the
capillation of 6,000 pounds of bottom hole pressure.
Yeah, that's what we would |ike to achieve
6, 000 pounds. Correct.

Q Okay. So you need 6,000 pounds to achieve
mscibility?

A.  Uh- huh.

Q So then your application is quite vague, to
be honest. There's a lot of details m ssing and
it's very difficult to make assessnent here of the
voi dage, for lack of a better word, the voi dage
bal ance or inbalance in the reservoir because sone
prelimnary calculations that | did suggest that
you're injecting nmore fluid, nore gas into the
reservoir than the equivalent volume that's being
of f-taken fromthe pilot project well.

So as a result of that inbalance, | nean,

is there any potential or | guess there is potenti al
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to displace oil down dip and potential have waste;
Is that correct?

A. Oh, I'"'mnot sure about that. So, that
woul d be a reservoir teamthat has to answer that
questi on.

Q Fair enough. So those are the type of
details that when | say vague, those are the type of
details we need to understand because | guess if we
could go to the | ogs on page -- on slide 83. So if
we | ook at those | ogs, the | oad of Bone Springs is
curve in green. |Is that your resistivity curve?

MS. NOONAN: Yes.

MR. HARRI'S: So, as we | ook bel ow the
I njection zone, you nove into the third Bone Springs
| aunch zone, your resistivity decreases. |s that
I ndi cative of a water transition zone leading into a
wat er wet zone?

A.  No. Unconditional reservoir is not the
case.

Q Okay. So there's no free water associ ated
with this reservoir?

A. This is an unconventional reservoir where
we don't have conventional water, oil, gas contacts.

Q  Fair enough.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Ms. Noonan, would you
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speak a little | ouder, please.

A. This is an unconventional reservoir where
we do not have conventional water, oil, gas contacts
as would normally be indicated by a resistivity | og.

Q So then, is there any -- is there potenti al
If you're injecting nore gas into the reservoir,

t han the equivalent off-take volunme for this
intra-well project that is the focus, if you're

i njecting nore than you're off taken or than is
bei ng taken off, and if we go to the next slide on
Page 84, your reservoir dips to the east. Could you
be di splacing oil down dip, and, therefore, creating
a situation where it's waste and not recoverabl e?

A. The idea for me would be the gas would
follow the path of |east resistants so the | ower
pressure zones, so that would be uptive. But
probably before that prefer any depletion in the
fractures of the wells.

Q So | guess, wi thout bel aboring the point
we, basically, need sone nore information to nmake a
true assessnent of what's occurring here because
your entire package suggests that it's a one-wel
intra-mscibility project, but the fact that you're
I njecting nmore gas than is being extracted from that

well in ternms of equivalent reservoir volune insitu,
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there is a potential for waste.

And that has to be addressed. So, | guess
M. Hearing Exam ner, would it be okay for us to
supply a list of itens after this hearing that we
want to see in terms of a foll ow up package,
suppl ement al package?

HEARI NG EXAM NER: Let me go to M. Rankin.

M. Rankin?

MR. RANKIN: O course. We would like to
hear what nmore of the division would request from
Oxy, but | wonder if there's an opportunity still to
redi rect and maybe address sonme of those questions
on redirect. Not that it's going to cover
everything and M. Harris has asked, but at the end
the hearing, | think once the hearing is conplete
woul d be nore than willing to consider what the
division would like to see in ternms of suppl enent
I nformati on.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: It sounds to ne,

M. Rankin, as though this hearing will end up being
continued to another date to, basically, wait to
receive this information that the division wants,

| et the technical reviewers do their job, and then
come back and ask sone nobre questions at that tine.

So, | leave it up to you. |If you think it's better
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to redirect or, yes, to redirect at this tine,
pl ease.

Ot herwi se, we can get a list now fromthe
techni cal exam ners and then cone back on the record
and then you can see where that |eads. So how woul d
you like to proceed?

MR. RANKIN: | think if M. Harris is done
with his questions, | think | would prefer to have
his |ist of questions, be able to go back and
prepare the responses and present additional
suppl ement testinony. And then if there's further
questions, be able to redirect at that point.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: And maybe what we can
do, M. Rankin, is get sone self-affirmstatenents
t hat specifically go to the questions so that we
have it in the record their full answer so they feel
| i ke they've been heard both in witing and summary
at the next hearing.

So, M. Harris, are you finished with your
gquestions and are you ready to give ne a |list of
what you want ?

MR. HARRIS: | would need sone tine to
provide a list to fully address what we need to see,
and | would like to consult with MIIlion and ot her

menbers of the team who may have additi onal
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guestions. So is it necessary that they be provided

ri ght now or could we follow up later this week?

HEARI NG EXAM NER: | think so.
M. Rankin?
MR. RANKI N: Yeah. | think we're at the

mercy of the division so we would like to be able to
see those questions and have consensus fromthe
di vi sion on what those are. And then once we see
them we'll know better how nmuch time we would need
to prepare the information. And | would conmunicate
with you and the division offline on that. And then
we can reset this for another date once we have a
determ nation of how long that will take us to
prepare it all.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: M. G bber M chael and
M. Harris, it was nmy understanding that you wanted
addi tional information, not so nmuch that you had
addi ti onal questions. | know you both have
addi ti onal questions. But are there exhibits that
you want Oxy to submt in addition to maybe sone
questions that you would |Iike to have answered?

M. Gebrem chael .

MR. GEBREM CHAEL: | think what Tony stated
iIs we will present our questions and then that w |l

give them enough tine to, you know, so they could
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judge how long it's going to take. So we're going
to present our questions in witing.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: And some of the answers

may be -- to your questions may be in the form of
exhibits as well as testinmony. |s that what you're
sayi ng?

MR. GEBREM CHAEL.: Yes.

HEARI NG EXAM NER:  All right.

MR. HARRI'S: Just to clarify, what we'd be
| ooking for is we'd like to see an accounti ng of
mat eri al bal ance or the voi dage repl acenment ratios
to understand whet her the gas that you're injecting
I's confined just to the drainage radius of your
Intra-well of your pilot well, or does it go beyond
t he drainage rate so that well and provide an
interference effect on your off-set producing wells.

So what would be required is a full
under st andi ng of your reservoir paranmeters such as
your bubbl e point pressure, your current reservoir
pressure, your oil formation volunme factors, your
gas formation volume factors, and then relate all
your volumes too and -- your reservoir conditions so
that we a full assessnment of what's actually on
occurring in the reservoir in ternms of phase

behavi or and di spl acement mechani sns.
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MR. GEBREM CHAEL: Tony, we could present
t hose questions in ternms of witing, and then --
yeah okay. Thank you.

MR. HARRIS: | was just trying to set

concepts of what we're | ooking for here.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: All right. | think at
this point, we're not going to be -- we don't have
anyt hing nore productive to do today. | want to

t hank the witnesses for their appearance.

M. Rankin, thank you for your preparation.

M. Harris and M. Gebrem chael for your review of
this extrenely technical and involved data.

M . Gebrem chael, when do you antici pate
of having a list of either additional exhibits and
I nformati on and/ or questions that you want at the
next hearing? How |long do you want to fornul ate
that |ist.

MR. GEBREM CHAEL: Maybe | want to Tony to
make this decision-mking. Tony, we should be able
to conpose our questions within two weeks, right,
within a week tine.

MR. HARRI'S: For sure, yeah.

MR. GEBREM CHAEL: So within one week.

HEARI NG EXAM NER: All right. So today is

the 9th so we will provide counsel for Oxy the
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addi tional information either in the form of
addi ti onal exhibits or questions to be answered
wi thin one week from today.

Do you want to di scuss a possible new
heari ng date, M. Rankin?

MR. RANKIN: Yes. |If we get the questions
a week fromtoday, | think the next docket would be
the 23rd; is that right?

HEARI NG EXAM NER: | don't necessarily need
to be on a docket. We could do a special docket
because we have M. Harris, M. Gebrem chael and I

wanted to give Oxy the preference to nove this

al ong.

MR. RANKIN:. Yeah. Wthout seeing the |ist
and know ng what the work will be involved, this is
hard to say, so | think I'd have to have that |i st

of questions, confer with the Oxy team and then get
back to you. | think -- | will expect that we
probably could get back to you within a week of
receiving the list of questions, so | think by the
23rd we should be able to give you an idea of how
long it would take us to put together the materials,
Sso.

THE COURT: Now, we do have say speci al

docket on the 4th of February. | wonder whether we

Page 197

Veritext Lega Solutions

Caendar-nm@veritext.com 505-243-5691 WWWw.veritext.com




© 00 N oo o b~ W N P

N R N N R R N N =
o A W N P O © 0O N O 0o &~ W N +—» O

could add this to that docket. So |let me power up
my conputer now that it's fixed and take a | ook at

t he hearings nodule. Okay. On the 4th of February,
| show that we have one, two -- we have sone
contested hearings between first. W just heard

t oday that nost of those Flat Creek cases are going
away with the exception of possibly one of them

And then we have another hearing which is basically
a good cause heari ng.

This is on the al pha energy -- so | don't
think that case will go very long so why don't we
add this case as a trailing docket to the February 4
I f that doesn't work for you |let me know okay. But
In the next week or two would you continue this case
to the February 4 docket and you can. | don't know
If you're the one who selects it, but you can keep
it as a hearing affidavit. | don't know who sel ects
the status. February 4 should give you enough tine.
It's almbst a month fromnow. And it will be the
| ast case we hear on that trailing docket, but it's
not a long. These are not conplicated indications
that are on there. Okay. |s there anything else
before we go off the record?

Thank you, everyone, it is 2:50 p.m W

are in recess in this case.
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(End of proceedings at 2:50 p.m)
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I, Kristine Kaczor, Certified Reporter and
Regi stered Professional Reporter in for the the
State of New Mexico, do hereby certify:

That said proceedi ng was taken down by nme
i n stenotype on January 9, 2025, at the place
t herein nanmed, and was thereafter transcribed, and
that a true and correct transcription of said
testinmony is set forth from precedi ng pages,
according to ny ability to hear and understand the
proceedi ngs.

| further certify that | amnot kin or
ot herwi se associated with any of the parties to said
cause of action and that | am not interested in the

outcome t hereof.
W TNESS MY HAND this 3rd day of February,
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Kristine Kaczor, RPR
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